Annual Report
2022- 2023




Contact Information:

HEAD OFFICE:

138B Mission Road,
Fort William First Nation, ON, P7J 1K7
Phone: 1- 800- 465- 5581

HUB OFFICES:

THUNDER BAY OFFICE:

(new office September 1, 2023)

101 Syndicate Avenue North, Thunder Bay, ON

P7C 3V4
Phone: (807) 622- 1413

Toll Free: 1- 800- 465- 5581
Fax: (807) 622- 3024

OFFICE HOURS:

Monday-Friday, 9:00am — 5:00pm EST

SIOUX LOOKOUT OFFICE:

56 Front Street,

Sioux Lookout, ON P8T 1A3
Phone: (807) 737-7981
Toll Free: 1-800-465- 5581
Fax: (807) 737-7297

TIMMINS OFFICE:

119 Pine Street South-Suite 210,
Timmins, ON P4N 2K3

Phone: (705) 268-1105

Fax: (705) 268-0012

KENORA OFFICE:

308 Second Street South, Suite 14,
Kenora, ON, PON 1G4

AUDITORS: MNP LLP

Chartered Professional Accounts

Licensed Public Accountants

2022- 2023 Annual Report NALSC
© 2023 Nishnawbe- Aski Legal Services

Corporation

Published by: Nishnawbe- Aski Legal Services

Corporation

PRODUCED & PRINTED BY:

"~ INGAGED

TRANSLATIONS

Special Thanks to our translators:
Ojicree: Charles Brown

Cree: Madeliane Kioke



Table of Contents

5 About

7 Programs and Services

8 Board of Directors

o) Messages from the Chair

n Message from the Executive Director

13 Message from the Manager of Legal Services
14 Legal Aid Program

20 Gladue Program

25 Indigenous Bail Verification and Supervision &

Community Release and Reintegration Programs

31 Discharge Planning Program
34 Restorative Justice
41 Victim Witness Liaison

45 Talking Together Program
54 Human Resources
TAB1 Oji Cree Version

TAB 2 Cree Version




NISHNAWBE ASKI LEGAL
SERVICES CORPORATION

@Fort Severn
(m]

Hudson Bay

@Weenusk

W’\E
\Y/

@Bearskin Lake
@5achigo Lake @Kitchenuhmaykoosib Inninuwug [
@ Wapekeka

@ CKasabonika Lake
@sandy Lake @Muskrat Dam Lake

TREATY#9
@Koocheching

O INDIGENOUS COMMUNITY
ey 1929-30 B NON-INDIGENOUS COMMUNITY
@north CarBA@Kingfisher Lake ] NALSC OFFICES AND PROGRAMS

o @ Nibinamik @ Webequie
@Poplar lnn

@Wunnumin Lake @ Attawapiskat
]
@North Spirit Lake
@MacDowell Lake

@Keewaywir

@Deer Lake

TREATY#5
1875-76

A
[ @pikangikum

|
@Kashechewan
@Neskantaga "
/ @cat Lake

@Fort Albany
0 [ |ames Bay
Pickle Lakél [1® Eabametoong, @Marten Fal
larten Falls
] M Red Lake @eiv Slate Falls
@Mishkeegogamang

@Moose Cree
@whitewater Lake
TREATY#3
1873 @Lacseul

W Armstrong TREATY#9
0 / 1905-06
I M Kenora @Aroland
M Dryden M Sioux Lookout -

@ Long Lake #58 OFlying Post Bl
e Nipigoq ("] » . [ @constance Lake
Geraldton inoogaming @
M Ignace

W Hearst

I

i
M Kapuskasing \
W Hornepayne © Taykwa Tagamou |
M Manitouwadge Woba M Cochrane ¥

M Nipigon

] B Thunder Bay -

@Wahgoshig
] M Timmins
Lake Superior

1
@Missanabie Cree

Matachewan
M Chapleau
Chapleau Cres@

W Goy
@Brunswick House

ochap\eyq«may

ON EVERY CHILD MATTERS M40
NISHNAWBE ASKI LEGAL SERVICES CORPORATION SUPPORTS AND RESOURCES

Argyle Community Support Program (For Indian Day Schools only)

24-hour Residential School Crises Line

NAN Hope

Hope for Wellness Help Line

Talk 4 Healing: Talk, Text, Chat

Native Women’s Association of Canada MMIW Crisis Line

Indian Residential Schools Survivors and Family

NISHANAWBE ASKI NATION TRIBAL COUNCILS:

1. Independent First Nations Alliance ° 2. Keewaytinook Okimakanak Council * 3. Matawa First Nations * 4. Mushkegowuk Council
5. Shibogama First Nations Council * 6. Wabun Tribal Council * 7. Windigo First Nations Council * 8. Independent Bands




About Nishnawbe-Aski Legal
Services Corporation

On March 1,1990, Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation was created to address the
shortcomings in the administration of justice within Nishnawbe Aski Nation (NAN); and to
improve access to justice for members of NAN. Since 1990, NALSC has grown steadily
and worked hard to develop a professional image, and to hire qualified staff to carry out
the corporation’s mandate. Innovative and creative programs have made NALSC a
leader, and at times — an example, in alternatives to justice options. NALSC has met with

success in these areas.

VISION

To respect and revitalize restorative justice forms of justice through Indigenous laws

and Pimatisiwin (way of life)

MANDATE

To promote creative community-based justice systems and to deliver on a wide range
of law related services including legal, paralegal, public legal education, and law reform

services to members of Nishnawbe Aski Nation.

MISSION

To deliver the programs and services in a culturally appropriate manner sensitive to the

unique values, customs, and traditions of NAN communities.

OUR VALUES & PRINCIPLES

+ Unity, Self Governance, « Compassion and Caring
and Sustainability
+  Wisdom
+ Respect and Dignity
« Truth

+ Integrity and Honesty
» Sharing and Partnership
* Humility

+ Courage




A SYMBOL OF UNITY

The Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services symbol combines the traditional elements of the

Aboriginal community with those of the Euro Canadian tradition. Designer Roy
Kakegamic weaves a scales of justice theme into the symbol using a balancing peace
pipe. The pipe is recognized as the historical sacred symbol for bringing understanding
between different people. The peace pipe is balanced on a tipi, which is the ancestral
symbol for the home. On each side of the tipi is a feather hanging from the peace pipe.
One side of the tipi is coloured white and the other side black symbolizing the need for
understanding of the two sides of every story. In the middle of the tipi is a red opening,
an open invitation to the coming together of both sides. The three elements: the peace
pipe, tipi and feathers are contained in a circle — the circle of life — without beginning or
end. This creates the fourth element in the design. Each of these elements represents
one of the four directions of the compass. This theme is repeated in the four sacred

colours in the symbol: red, yellow, white and black.



Nishnawbe- Aski Legal Services Corporations

Programs and Services

Legal Aid Ontario
+ Staff Lawyers
«  Community Legal Workers

+ Public Legal Education

Bail Verification and Supervision
Program & Community Release
and Reintegration Program

+ Bail Navigator

Gladue
» Gladue Case Workers

- Gladue Writers

Restorative Justice

+ Community Youth Justice

» Community Youth Intervention

- Sexual Assault and Domestic
Violence Prevention Services

+  Community By-Law
« Community Learning Hub
+ Guns & Gangs Services

+ Pre-Charge Diversion

Victim Witness Liaison Program

« Anti Human Trafficking

Talking Together Program

+ Youth Violence Human Trafficking

Prevention Project

+ Nih Keewaywin - My Journey

Back Home

+  Community Counselling Centre

of North Bay

Discharge Program

PLEASE VISIT OUR WEBSITE AT
www.nanlegal.on.ca




Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is made up of 8 voting members
representing various Tribal Councils across NAN territory. The
board is also made up of special advisors, Elder representatives
East/ Central/ West, Ex- Officio from Nishnawbe Aski Nation
corporation whom holds the portfolio of Justice, and a Youth

Representative from the Nishnawbe Aski Nation Youth Council.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEMBERSHIP 2022- 2023

CHAIR: Jim Beardy

Independent First Nation Alliance

VICE CHAIR: Frank McKay

Windigo First Nations Council
SECRETARY/
TREASURER: Jason Batise

Wabun Tribal Council

DIRECTOR: Simon Winnepetonga

Shibogama Tribal Council

DIRECTOR: Tom Wassaykeesic

Unaffiliated Member of Mishkeegogamang First Nation

DIRECTOR: Cory J. Meekis

Keewaytinook Okimakanak

DIRECTOR: Rebecca Friday

Mushkegowuk Council

DIRECTOR: Lisa Echum

Matawa

EX-OFFICIO NISHNAWBE ASKI- NATION CORPORATION:
Deputy Grand Chief Anna Betty Achneepineskum

NISHNAWBE ASKI- NATION YOUTH COUNCIL
REPRESENTATIVE: Ashley Bach

ELDER EAST: Barney Batise

ELDER WEST: Vacant

ELDER CENTRAL: Sarah Waboose




MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIR

JIM BEARDY

Aniin, Boozhoo, Wachiyal!

As Chair of Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation (NALSC), it is a pleasure to send
greetings to NAN Territory on behalf of the Board of Directors and the staff of the organization.
Over the past year, NALSC continued to strive to cover a wider range of legal initiatives to
meet client needs, expand client-focused services and improve access to justice. As we
recognize the importance of having strong communication and network between our
organization and NAN First Nations communities, we strive to achieve a strong presence

in the justice system serving NAN Territory.

This year has been quite busy with an organization-wide restructuring that will allow us to
serve NAN Territory and our NAN clients better. With great effort and great working
relationships between all levels of the organization, our new organizational model process is
well underway. As NALSC continues to grow, it is our aspiration to deliver services for Mino

Pimatiziwin “way of life”; and to meet our Mandate, Mission, and Vision.

On behalf of the Board of Directors and the organization, | am pleased to share that
Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation (NALSC) and Legal Aid Ontario (LAO) signed the
New Legal Services Agreement on October 20, 2022, under the Legal Aid Services Act (LasA),
2020. Both organizations were dedicated in the development of this new agreement that
creates an opportunity to restore a quality working relationship based on mutual respect

and understanding.

As we navigate together through new hybrid-workplaces in a post-covid environment, with
political and judicial injustices that continue to adhere to our Anishnawbe nations, we will work

diligently toward greater authority and autonomy over our First Nations freedom and liberty.

In closing, | want to express my gratitude for all the hard work and enthusiasm that has been
shown in all efforts to reach our goal. May God bless you in all aspects of your daily lives.

Miigwetch and have a great year.

JIM BEARDY

Board Chair, Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation



EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

IRENE LINKLATER B.A., LL.B.

Aniin Boozhoo Wacheyi

Another year has gone by very quickly. | realize once again that so much more must
be done to fulfill the mandate of Nishnawbe Aski Legal Services Corporation, also
known as NAN LEGAL, created by the vision of the NAN Chiefs and Elders in

establishing this organization.

The NAN LEGAL Annual General Meeting (AGM) 2021-2022 held in Thunder Bay titled
“Investing in Community Based Justice Strategy” debated and passed resolutions
that will be updated at the planned September 2023 AGM; Member Resolution No.01/
Accepting of NALSC Annual Report and Audit; Member Resolution No. 02/Satellite
In-Person Fly-In Courts in NAN Territory and Ongoing Inequality and Access to Justice
Issues; Member Resolution No.03/Investing in Community Based Justice Strategy for
Mino Pimatisiwin; and Member Resolution No.04/Skylar’s law initiative to register and

monitor convicted serious personal injury offences.

A measure taken this fiscal year by the Board identified a growth strategy that
includes the development and implementation of a New Organizational Model. The
October session’s planning approach focussed on the vision, mandate, mission, and
principles that frames the NAN LEGAL 5-Year Strategic Plan 2021-2026 around four key
pillars, Legal Services, Restorative Justice & Traditions, Financial Stability,
Collaboration & Partnerships. From this, four priority areas were identified: Growth
Strategy to the development of a new operational model; Succession Planning at all
levels of the board, management, and program staff; New Legal Aid Services
Agreement between Legal Aid Ontario/NAN LEGAL signing and announcement; and
Incarceration, inquests, custody deaths, and wrap-around services (life stabilization).
Another measure was for a Compensation Study undertaken with LAO for pay equity
and wage parity to legal aid funded staff, upon which the Board decided must also

apply for all programs and staff.




I am honored to sit on the Broken Trust Advisory Circle established under the
Coroner’s Act, comprised of six Anishnawbe Kwe for the preparing of a systemic
review report on the reinvestigations of Indigenous deaths in the Thunder Bay region.
This report is grounded in each Families’ experience and views, with a trauma

informed lens. It is to be released this next year.

I wish to express a recognition to All Staff at the front-line who are the backbone of NAN
LEGAL. It is because of and through your hard work and dedication advocating for and
navigating NAN members in the justice system and judicial processes that we have had
another successful year. You serve as a bridge for improving access to justice and
getting Justice for the North to be taken seriously by governments and its institutions, to

that given to transforming change around education and health systems.

On behalf of ALL STAFF, we express our appreciation to the Board of Directors for their
dedication and support that guides us in serving the First Nations members and
Communities. Appreciation also goes to NAN LEGAL law partners, Judiciary, court

services, and funders.

Miigwetch,

Irene



MANAGER OF LEGAL SERVICES - ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

DON RUSNAK

Aniin Boozhoo Wacheya. The Legal Services Department of Nishnawbe- Aski Legal Services
(NALSC) is currently made of up of 4 program areas, Legal Aid, Staff Lawyer, Gladue and the
Indigenous Bail Verification, Supervision & Community Release & Reintegration Programs. The
Department currently makes up close to one-third of the full time complement of employees at
NAN Legal Services. As we continue to integrate and evolve the delivery of services across NAN

Territory, we are constantly adjusting to deliver the best services across such a unique region.

The Legal Services Department is continually adjusting to the post COVID 19 Pandemic realities
and the wide-reaching impacts on all aspects of life across NAN Territory. Staff across the
entire Department have continually adapted to these realities during the pandemic and
continue to adjust and innovate as we move into a post pandemic world. Over the last year,
post pandemic realities are becoming more apparent, such as reduced resources, including
planes and pilots that have affected in-person services and court sittings in communities.
These realities are affecting the delivery of Legal and Court services for all Justice System
partners across the territory. As we move forward, we continue to work with our Justice System
partners to address resourcing and delivery of Legal and Court Services to our communities. To
date all NAN Legal offices are open and where health restrictions and regional rules allow, most

in person services have resumed.

It has been a difficult, few years and will continue to be challenging as we adjust to the post
pandemic environment. | would again like to thank the people throughout NAN Territory for their
patience and understanding during these challenging times. | would like to acknowledge the
leadership in the communities for the work they have done to steer their communities through
uncertainty of the past and continue to guide them through current challenges. | would also
like to acknowledge and thank the staff of NAN Legal for their hard work and continued

dedication throughout.

Sincerely,
Don Rusnak LL.B

Manager of Legal Services
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Legal Aid Program

ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Legal aid staff returned to the office in 2022 on a
hybrid basis and will be back in the office full time

some time in the summer of 2023.

Northern Courts are now resuming in the
communities. Advance courts continue to be held
virtually except for Mishkeegogamang and
Pikangikum. Community Legal Workers, Duty Counsel
and Crown attend advance courts virtually or in
person to prepare for the court day. Persons can call
in by zoom or attend in person to see or speak to duty
counsel prior to the court date. Community Legal
Workers are also available to assist with completing
forms, commissioning documents, referrals to NALSC

programs and completing applications for legal aid.

Please see legal aid legal and financial eligibility

guidelines on legal aid website at www.legalaid.on.ca

Northern Duty Counsel Calendar and Zoom Advance
Courts are posted on the NALSC website at

www.nhanlegal.on.ca.



Certificates Issued for NAN Members

FROM APRIL 1, 2022, TO MARCH 31, 2023

NAN AO48 CERTIFICATE BREAKDOWN APRIL 2022-MARCH 2023
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NALSC Legal Aid with Prime Minister Justin Trudeau




Staff lawyers are available to provide summary advice to NAN members on Monday,
Wednesday, and Friday from 1:00 p.m. to 5:00 pm. The lawyers are also scheduled for duty

counsel in some of the fly in remote commmunities, and available for public legal education.

PUBLIC LEGAL EDUCATION UPDATE - CHERYL SUGGASHIE

«  Anti Race Anti Hate Proposal — Community Engagement Sessions with the final booklet and
presentation. Final Report due July 2023.

«  DOJ/JPIP - Legal Aid and Support for Racialized Communities. Community presentations held
in Sandy Lake and Thunder Bay.

. Communication with communities, confirming dates with communities for presentations,
and coordinating community visits.

«  Updating PLE various topic Presentations with Staff Lawyers and agencies.

«  Networking with external agencies, collaborating with Organizations and represent NALSC on
various committees

«  Assisted Indigenous Bail Program on Mental Health Training.

«  Quarterly newsletters, updating website, social media accounts and PLE resources.




PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Legal aid staff attended and participated in the following training
sessions from April 2022 - March 2023.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING:

«  Restoring your Story — helping victims reclaim their future.

«  Community Legal Education — helping clients with legal problems
and navigating the Justice System

e Visit to Gladue Court

+  Legal Aid Ontario Virtual Training (Financial Eligibility Training,
LASA Process Enhancements, Peoplesoft Refresher Training)

+  Parole Board of Canada: Program and Services
+  Service Canada - Wills & Estates

+  Team Building

*  Parliament of Canada and Supreme Court Tour
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Gladue Program
2022-2023

GLADUE REPORTS

Waachay, Booshoo from the Gladue Program. 2022-2023
was another successful year for the Nishnawbe- Aski Legal
Services Corporation (NALSC) Gladue department. This
year, Gladue program remains focused on conducting the
“Gladue Sentencing Principles,” as per sections 718.2(e) of

the Criminal Code.



OBJECTIVES:

+ To provide Gladue services to Indigenous Offenders who are members of
Nishnawbe Aski Nation, Treaty #9 and #5 area, who are before the court
for sentencing by preparing a Gladue Report.

«  To highlight the systemic and historical factors which contributed to the
individuals’ involvement with the criminal court system through Gladue
report-writing and to make culturally appropriate recommendations.

» To provide the Aftercare Program for Indigenous clients. The Gladue
Caseworkers assist clients in completing the recommendations as part of
the clients’ sentence.

« To provide training to the Gladue Writers and Caseworkers in
professional development.

+  And build partnerships with other justice stakeholders (courts, police,
corrections, lawyers, and judges) and provide Gladue presentations to
NAN communities.

Our Gladue Writers continue to be busy preparing Gladue Reports for our Nishnawbe Aski
Nation members in the forty-nine communities we serve. During the pandemic we still had

a good report writing year. Our writers prepared and wrote 69 reports for this year.




GLADUE PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS THIS YEAR

In February 2022, Bryan Phelan, Senior Gladue Writer and Terri Zoccole, Senior Gladue
Caseworker presented via zoom to “Now our minds are one”: Northwest Regional Justice
Gathering, which was attended by many funding agencies such as the Ministry of

Attorney General, Youth Justice and Department of Justice.

The Gladue Staff also presented to NAN communities via zoom in March 2022 on “Know
your Gladue rights”, which was advertised via Facebook and Nan Legal newsletter. We
had several draws which included two laptops, earphones, and an iPad. The 13 staff of
the Gladue program participated and interacted with the public on various

Gladue topics.

March 2022 Terri Zoccole, Senior Gladue Caseworker presented and sat on a panel for
the Gladue Caseworkers/Aftercare workers Canada Conference. This event which was
held via zoom was in partnership with The Department of Justice of Canada and

Aboriginal Legal Services.

The Gladue team and our staff lawyer Oana Christie were trained in Ottawa in
November 2023, by Jane Dickson a law professor specializing in Gladue report writing.
The Gladue presentations were on the Gladue data base and case notes delivered by
Senior Gladue Caseworker Terri Zoccole and a presentation on Gladue writing by the

Gladue Senior writers, Bryan Phelan, and Lenny Carpenter.

The Gladue program “know your Gladue rights” presented by George Edwards, Manager
of Gladue and Lenny Carpenter, Senior Gladue Writer to the Crown Attorneys via zoom in

December 2022.

The Gladue team presented it to all adult probation officers in December 2022 in
Northwest Ontario, to help spread awareness of Gladue and to help build up

relationships for our Nan clients.



GLADUE WRITERS AND CASEWORKERS

The Gladue Department consists of twelve staff. Six (6) Gladue Writers and

Six (6) Gladue Caseworkers:

TIMMINS OFFICE- NORTHEAST
Lenny Carpenter Senior Gladue Writer

Feather Metatawabin Gladue writer, on contract

THUNDER BAY OFFICE- NORTH CENTRAL
Terri Zoccole Gladue Caseworker Lead
Alexandria Adams Gladue Caseworker
Jennifer Stienke Gladue writer

Joy Nwaubani Gladue writer

KENORA OFFICE- NORTHWEST
Bryan Phelan Senior Gladue writer

Robert Albany Gladue Caseworker

RED LAKE OFFICE- NORTHWEST

Leslie King Gladue writer

Diana Pine Gladue Caseworker
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Indigenous Bail
Verification and
Supervision and
Community Release
and Reintegration
Programs 2022-23



2022 - 2023 STATISTICS

B 2022 - 2023 Clients Assisted

TRAINING

After the long months of the pandemic, August 2022 finally allowed the team to be together in
Thunder Bay for some much needed in person training along with attending team building
exercises. Over the course of the week, the team attended in person training at the office but
also fun activities and team building exercises outside. For some team members, it was the

first-time meeting in person due to the long restrictions during Covid-19 pandemic.

STAFFING

2022-2023 saw some movement in terms of staffing. A bail navigator was hired along with a
temporary bail administrative support. A team lead was also promoted from within the program.
Two vacancies remain, one in the Northeast with the Release and Reintegration program, and

one in the Northwest with the Bail Supervision program.



OUTREACH AND EDUCATION ACTIVITES

While things have moved away from pandemic restrictions, this has allowed Indigenous Bail
Verification and Supervision Program (IBVSP) and Community Release and Reintegration
Program (CRR) to have more opportunities for in-person outreach with service providers and

community partners.

At the end of January and early February, IBVSP/CRR Team Lead Catherine Gull and Staff
Lawyer Oana Cristea provided seven presentations for the Timmins Police Service on the Bail
Supervision Program and Community Release and Reintegration Program. Each platoon
attended for the presentations which opened the door for meaningful dialogue and
questions, and to provide understanding within respective roles. This enabled further
discussion and learning on the broader issue of colonialism and how it has impacted
Indigenous peoples in the context of the western justice system. Catherine and Oana were
also able to introduce the Bail Bed Program to the police service as a positive asset in the

work they do in the Timmins area.

In early March, they also traveled north overnight to Moosonee and Moose Factory to provide
an IBVSP/CRR presentation to interested community partners at the EPR Centre in Moose
Factory. Unfortunately, attendance wasn't possible as the community closed all their offices
in the face of an emergency, due to a prolonged power outage the night before. Due to the
ever-changing circumstances of Northern life and a very short travel timeline, a decision
was made that if the community couldn’t attend, they would go to them. So, once open, they
attended at Moose Cree First Nation offices, Moose Cree Health Authority, Nishnawbe Aski
Police and Band Rep offices to provide materials and answer any questions. The day prior
they were also able to have good conversation with a worker from Probation and Parole in

Moosonee who is fromm Moose Cree First Nation.

During the month of March again, a presentation was scheduled in Pikangikum First Nation.
Catherine and Oana were able to attend and visit the bail bed and meet with attending staff.
A meeting was also held with the local OPP. A presentation was organized to discuss the bail

supervision program.

Another great opportunity for Outreach and Education materialized during the second week
of March when Catherine and Oana put on a summarized version of the IBVSP/CRR virtual
Teams presentation to many of the Northeast Justices of the Peace. This came about
through prior conversations Oana had with Regional Senior Justice of the Peace J. G.
McMahon about some newer developments such as the Bail Beds facility and program.
Although they only had half an hour for the presentation, it served as a first step in working

together with the courts and advocating directly with the bench.




Overall, it was a good start to Outreach, mixing in routine and unconventional ways. The

pandemic forced us to change our perspective when in-person Outreach came to a halt
and moved to a virtual platform. But while everyone can agree that virtual engagement has
its advantages in some capacity, we fully recognize that in-person engagement and meet
and greets can be more effective. It not only gets the information out there for our NAN
members but creates effective engagement and opportunities when direct

communication occurs.

INDIGENOUS BAIL NAVIGATOR PILOT PROJECT

Nishnawbe Aski Legal Services Corporation (NALSC) is committed to improving access to
justice, access to culturally relevant support and culturally appropriate programs and
prevention for Nishnawbe Aski Nation members throughout Ontario. With funding from the
Solicitor General, the Indigenous Justice Division of the Ministry of the Attorney General,
NALSC started a pilot project which brought in a new position of an Indigenous Bail
Navigator, to be situated at Monteith Correctional Complex. Monteith Correctional Complex
Management has been supportive and has been working with NALSC to create space and

provide training for the new Indigenous Bail Navigator position.

The Bail Navigator started meeting and assisting clients on October 13th, 2022. Starting out

was slower initially as 36 clients were provided services from October 13 to December 3ist.

Q4 saw a drastic rise in number of clients — assisting 128 unique clients. Client requests to the
Bail Navigator for assistance ranged from phone calls to their legal counsel to full bail

planning. In total, 68 full bail plans were created.

Navigating the limitations and possibilities within the jail and from a new position was
difficult but crucial. The Bail Navigator developed working relationships with various
coworkers inside the jail — including social workers, discharge workers, records personnel,
Correctional Officers, and court workers. He was also able to establish connections outside of
the jail with various legal counsel and duty counsel, treatment facilities, and bail

supervision programs.



The Bail Navigator is required to obtain permission/accessibility from the jail CO’'s when

attempting to see clients due to security, safety, health, capacity issues that arise daily
within the facility. Once approved — he can conduct interviews at the “grill”, access private
rooms/sections for confidential conversations/interviews, and provide phone calls
specific to lawyer calls, bail planning, and appointments. One challenge is that access is
not always guaranteed — if access to the jail floor is granted, sometimes access to the
phone or private space is not possible due to use or other movements. This sometimes

causes requests related to bail hearings to not be fulfilled.

The Bail Navigator's main method of assisting clients is through facilitating
communication (phone calls, forwarding messages, paperwork) with their respective
lawyers, duty counsel, social programs, treatment, etc. Explanations and education

surrounding the bail process was provided.

The following courses of action were taken, as they are most impactful, effective, and

easiest to track for bail planning with clients: Nurturing healthy lifestyles and relationships.

+  Liaison with counsel (lawyer and/or duty counsel)
« Legal Aid Applications

« IBVSP intakes/communication/coordination

+  Treatment/Detox applications

»  BSurety assistance

While many clients have seen successful bail plans and hearings — sometimes reaching a
resolution after exploring bail options occurred. Some clients also decided to waive their
right to bail and the immediate update to duty counsel reduced confusion or

complications in between bail hearings.

Many letters of support were provided from Legal Aid duty counsel for our bail navigator.
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Discharge Planning
Program - Annual
Report 2022- 2023

SUBMITTED BY: CHANTELLE JOHNSON
RESTORATIVE JUSTICE MANAGER

31



Our number of referrals totaled over 1000 clients for the fiscal year 2022-2023 but with
some cancellations and changes the total was 924. There were several difficulties
experienced with the lack of funding for more staff. As a result, two workers, one
working with Kenora District Jail (Lenard Comber) and the other worker/Coordinator
(Bonnie MacDonald) with all other jails and facilities in Ontario including Thunder Bay
Correctional Centre, Thunder Bay District Jail, Monteith Correctional Centre, Central
North Correctional Centre (Penetonguishene) Toronto East, Milton Ladies Correctional
Centre, North Bay District Jail and Sudbury District Jail. We also increased our Legal
Counsel referrals by dozens more. Youth facilities also increased as word of our

services spread rather quickly. The number of clients has tripled since it began in 2020.

Clients who are being sent to Detox Centre’s, Treatment Centre’s, Land Based
Treatment Centre’s by the Courts and on their own are using our services to return
home. They have said it's a relief to know that after Treatment they can get

home safely.

We have hired an additional Discharge Planner who will be residing in Thunder Bay and
has years of experience. With the three of us working we will be able to cover
weekends and evenings much better. One more staff, bringing it back up to the
original four members, is needed and we hope that more funding will help with that.
We have one driver in Thunder Bay and two in Kenora. We are in the process of hiring
another one in Thunder Bay. We will soon need another vehicle in Timmins as we are
paying increased amounts for taxi services that would be better utilized for a driver
and a vehicle. Taxi charges usually amount to almost triple what we pay our drivers
and maintain our vehicles, so it is saving. We have received only positive comments
from our referral sources and especially from the Youth agencies as to how
comfortable our clients have felt being transported home.The comments we receive
from the Jails and the Lawyers are incredible. They thank us every day for being there,
almost immediately, to assist them in getting our clients released earlier but safely as
well. They describe the program as being something they can’t imagine doing without.
We are efficient and respond in a timely manner especially when Legal Counsel is
attempting to negotiate releases in the courtroom. When the courts know that NAN
Legal is looking after the transportation it is in the client’s best interest and as a result

many of our clients have been released earlier when the Courts know they have safe

transportation. Thank you.
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Restorative Justice
Department
Annual Report
2022-2023

SUBMITTED BY:
CHANTELLE JOHNSON
RESTORATIVE JUSTICE MANAGER

As pandemic restrictions begin to ease, the Restorative Justice
Program is happy to report that community visits, in-person healing
circles, and hands-on youth programming have begun to resume.
While we are still faced with certain uncertainties in a post-pandemic
world, we are grateful to each of our staff for their commitment to
delivering consistent and effective programming to our NAN
Communities this year. Below, you will find an overview of just some of

their accomplishments for the 2022-2023 fiscal year.



Our Youth Intervention Department continued to provide virtual programming to youth
and in-person programming wherever possible during a time where it was needed the
most. Pandemic restrictions made for an isolating experience for many youths,
however, our facilitators were creative in their approach to providing intervention
services in communities. Virtual events such as online gaming tournaments, video
contests, photo contests, and more were held across several communities and results

were positive.

Some notable in-person events from this year include a 7-day immersive snowshoe
walk hosted by Sophia Lazarus, Kashechewan Youth Justice Worker, who was joined by
elders and guides that saw participation from 9 youth. In addition, during their
evacuation in early 2022, Kashechewan community members were invited to the
Thunder Bay Cineplex where the theater was rented exclusively for the evacuees to
comply with COVID isolation measures. Youth Services Team Lead, Stallone Quequish,
hosted a week-long Reach for Life experience for the Eabametoong community which
ended with a fun dance party attended by many. Youth Intervention workers Elton
Crow (Sandy Lake), Gloria Turtle (Pikangikum), and Quincy Okees (Guns & Gangs
Program, Eabametoong) continued to provide excellent recreational and creative
experiences to youth in their communities while ensuring youth with probation

conditions stayed on track.

Our Bylaw program (Vernon Morris, Evangeline Meekis, Jordon Akiwenzie) was able to
resume community visits, with notable trips and presentations made in the
communities of Weagamow, Muskrat Dam and Mishkeegogamang. They have been
working closely with NAPS, OPP, and Chief and Council to advocate for applying the
Restorative Justice process to enforcing Bylaw infractions and have been working
diligently to provide guidance to communities in developing their own

bylaw processes.

The Sexual Assault and Domestic Violence (SADV) Program was happy to welcome
Jordie (Gordie) Suggashie aboard in Pikangikum to assist with high volumes of
referrals and translation in the community. Alana Odawa-Lindstone continues to
process referrals from all other NAN commmunities and has also begun offering group
sessions for Court ordered Intimate Partner Response Programming. In August 2022,
all-staff training was held in Niagara Falls pertaining to the use of Restorative Justice
in the context of domestic violence and sexual assault. The trainings main focus was
to provide the RJ Team with extra tools tips and support in dealing with such

sensitive subjects.




All staff training was also provided for the Community Learning HUB digital learning
programs and software, where members of Springboard, our partner agency, travelled to
Thunder Bay to help facilitate training. Training on HUB facilitation has also begun at the
community level, with NALSC and springboard staff having travelled to Pikangikum to help
introduce anti-bullying programming in schools. We are also pleased to welcome our

newest HUB facilitator, Taina Martin.

The Restorative Justice Program also saw many developments over the past 12 months.
Notable achievements include the development and signing of a protocol with the Thunder
Bay Crown Attorney’s Office to help streamline the referral process and ensure clients are
receiving fair and timely services. We would like to thank staff lawyer Sarah Munsch for her

assistance to the RJ program in drafting the protocol.

Since COVID, the Restorative Justice and Youth Justice programs has seen a massive influx
in referrals, particularly last spring 2022 when COVID backlog files were referred to the
program for diversion. Ken Sackaney, Leahan Parrott, Christopher Beardy, Shirley Keesic,
Melanie Mohan, Lorilee Lessard, Ryan Sakakeep, Mary Spencer, and Elizabeth Johnson have
all been instrumental in ensuring clients continue to receive excellent care during these
uncertain times. The Restorative Justice department was also successful in securing
additional funding through Public Safety Canada for an additional 4 Restorative Justice
workers to help manage our ever-growing caseload. We look forward to welcoming more

members to our team in the year ahead.

Finally, the Pre-Charge program has been successful in working in partnership with NAPS

since the signing of the NALSC/NAPS protocol in early 2022. Jon Quequish and Kristy Martyn
continue to work closely with community partners including Nokiiwin, OPP, and Thunder Bay
Police to raise awareness and advocate for the use of the program. The Restorative Justice

Program looks forward to the new 2022-2023 fiscal year, particularly our all-staff gathering

in fall 2023 which will be the first since the pandemic.
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Victim Witness
Liaison
Annual Report
2022- 2023

SUBMITTED BY:
ANN HILLER
VICTIM WITNESS MANAGER
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VICTIM WITNESS STATISTICS 2022-2023

2 59 87

In 2022, Victim Witness Liaison Program have been busy with the Broken Trust

Reinvestigation and the Systemic Review of the Process of the Reinvestigations.

Mamakwa/Mckay Inquest occurred in the fall of 2022 with 23 family members. Victim
Witness Liaison played an important role in supporting the families during the

4-week Inquest.

Courts have opened in certain communities and workers have been busy attending
open courts but still some communities were doing them by zoom due to the

community’s protocol to COVID 19 in the First Nation.

In September 2022 VWL held training with the team on the court process/court
procedures with victims. Presenters were Sarah Munsch, Amber Echum, Shiela Corston

Charlene Tekkumah, Gillian Schaible and Special Guest Speaker of the LGBT2Q
VWL Co-ordinator & VWL Manager attended Halifax at the CAIJ Conference. 2022

6 members of the VWL team attended the Mediation Training in Toronto. The team did
the exercises and improved their skills in Mediation. All succeeded in obtaining their

Certificate. It was a great team effort.

VWL has been invited to be part of the new reinvestigations of 13 cases. This will be

ongoing throughout the year. A meeting took place on March 6, 2023.

VWL Manager did a presentation in Toronto regarding Trauma informed Sexual Assault

Investigations. “Supporting Indigenous Survivors of Sexual Assaults.”



VWL workers have been taking training by zoom. Not all workers can take training as

workload is to be busy.

We have a VWL Worker in the Thunder Bay Courthouse to assist with NAN Community

members and provide court assistance. Referrals should increase.

KNOW YOUR RIGHTS
VICTIMS HAVE A RIGHT TO:
Information
Participation
Restitution
Protection
To make a complaint
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Talking Together
Program

Annual Report
2022- 2023

YOUTH VIOLENCE HUMAN TRAFFICKING PREVENTION PROJECT
NIH KEEWAYWIN - MY JOURNEY BACK HOME

COMMUNITY COUNSELLING CENTRE OF NORTH BAY
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Circles have been held in-person mostly with limited virtual circles this past year.
However, some First Nations, organizations and clients were still not open to in-person
circles, it has been a gradual process. Some of the new Band Representative
Programs have engaged and assisted with our program via clients in their respective
areas. A presentation of Mushkegowuk area Band Representative Program was held
recently 11 band reps and a lead has been identified. It was suggested that we

develop a protocol.

Organizations and agencies are referring
clients more readily. The services provided to
families were in the areas of foster care,
kinship care, customary care,
apprehensions-parent want children place
with extended family, reunification, access
issues, reintegration with family,
partner-violence, addictions, mental health,

crown-ward, placement issues, long-term e of. New Post. Community,
custody, CAS intervention, parent CAS conflict

and youth transitioning out of care.
Facilitators have been working diligently in
contacting families, agencies, bands and
organizations in follow ups and circle dates.
There were a couple of clients and an elder

who have passed on to the spirit world this

past year. When this happens, we do

everything we can to provide support for the

families. Facilitators have also been busy with outreach in their respective areas. This
includes connecting with Agencies, clients, band representatives, organizations and
families via emails, phone calls, visits and package drop offs. Staff have participated
in quite a few presentations, booths, workshops, and training to help build capacity
and referral base; Youth Leadership Gathering Biitigong Nishnaabeg Pic River,
Gathering of Our People Moose Factory, Constance Lake Grand Opening Band
Representative Program, 20th Annual Northern College Pow-wow, NAN Child and
Family Services Forum 2022, ANCFSAO Child and Family Well Being Conference Blue
Hills, Ginoogaming FN Health Fair, NAN/NAPS/NALSC Symposium, Meet and Greet
Family Well Being Program Timmins, Confederation College-Onajigawin Indigenous
Service Program and NAN Youth Conference. Other training completed, Mediation,
Domestic Violence, Child Inclusive Mediation webinar and Rapid Response. This

community capacity building has helped in gaining referrals and networking.



TTP ADR Customary Care Presentation was held by facilitator Mary Pearce and TTP

manager via Zoom to the Native Child and Family Service Agencies of Ontario Social
Service Workers. Also, a TTP/ Nih Keewaywin-My Journey Back Home presentation
was also held via Zoom to Youth-in-Care Aged 16+ via OAFM conference. An
in-person presentation by facilitator Melissa Sutherland and Manager was held in
Timmins at Kunuwanimano CFS. TTP-MJBH ADR presentation was held with
University of Windsor Law course. In-person HRIS Training took place at the office for
all managers, changing of database system. Harm Reduction and Naloxone Kits
took place on zoom with TTP Staff. Frontline Skills for Social Services and Motivational
Interviewing Strategies for Supporting Change via CTRI took place with staff through
zoom. Human-Trafficking workshop took place through Western University via zoom
with TTP staff who were able to participate. Manager participated in the OFIFC
Traditional Forms of Justice & Relationships via zoom. Manager participated in
MCCSS Part 1 Working Effectively with Youth Who Sexually Offend. Manager and staff
also participated in a webinar Protecting Children from Domestic Violence ‘It takes
the whole community’ through the University of Western Ontario. Staff engaged in
several presentations, booths, training, and workshops. A virtual presentation took
place with Payukotayno CFS, Human Trafficking Conference (Timmins), TTP Training
(Timmins), ADR PD Day Supporting Children, Youth & Families Involved with Child
Welfare (Virtual) Trauma Informed Care & Therapeutic Process (Sudbury),
Confederation College/NALSC Career Fair, Tour of Wakenagun Youth Healing Lodge
(Timmins), Violence Against Women Community Council Round Table, LUNSA
Pow-wow and Timmins Northern College Pow-wow. All facilitators are engaged and
connecting with agencies, families, and communities in one form or another.
Referrals are addressed via phone calls, email and through the above outreach. At
the PAAC PD Day we heard from Lori Bennett Child Welfare Secretariat who spoke of
sixty-eight million in funding for the “The Ready Set Go Program” for youth leaving
care who would obtain life skills, trades, and employment. Launched April 2023. Staff
lawyer Oana Cristea and | assisted the Provincial ADR Advisory Committee with the
development of an ADR brochure-Information Chart: Comparison of ADR Methods
for Legal Counsel. TTP also had an in-person Advisory Committee meeting held in
Thunder Bay. TTP has also been busy with outreach; this includes connecting with
Agencies, clients, band representatives, organizations and families via emails, phone
calls, visits and package drop offs. Covidl9 continued to be a bit of a barrier.
However, we continued to engage as best following restrictions and utilize

conferencing via telephone and virtual platforms.




TALKING TOGETHER PROGRAM

STATISTICAL REPORT - APRIL 1, 2022 - MARCH 2023
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Youth Violence Human Trafficking Prevention Program-My Journey Back Home project

started late in the year due to hiring. However, we were able to hire individuals to
complete the project. Specifically, facilitator Lorilee Lessard and aftercare worker
Kristy Martyn who completed majority of the project with perseverance and
dedication before moving on to another program within NALSC. We then hired two
new workers to complete the last two months of the project who also did well in
assisting us. Circles were held in-person mostly with limited virtual circles. Training
and mentoring took place with weekly meetings as well as training sessions with
various organizations. Introduction letters and documentation of the program was
initiated with positive feedback and referrals for youth engagement. Band
Representatives indicated that they would like to be involved with their off-reserve
membership. Clients have engaged and requested other services and supports
where referrals were made. Child and Family Services included YVHTPP- Nih
Keewaywin aftercare worker in service plans and offered services during the process.
We've had a lot of success with the project specifically, two youth referrals, that
evolved tremendously in a short time by following through with appointments, phone
calls and keeping the aftercare worker informed when help/assistance was needed.
By and large, after the hiring and training of staff which took a few months and a late
start in the project, 23 Indigenous Youth 12-29, Family members served 38, hours of
direct service (12-18) 45 hours, young adults 244 hours, number of referrals received
23, Circles 34, presentations 10, and on-going aftercare support outside of business
hours and weekends. It has come to our attention that MJBH program targets have
been met. Other work included was the development of a combined TTP/MJBH power
point and an MCCSS update presentation with supervisor Sara Britt. MJBH obtained

office space/cubicles from the Gladue Program which had been very helpful to staff.

Overall, from July 2021 to March 2023 twenty-three youth and adults 12-29 were
served with thirty-three Circles and 12 no show. Reason for referrals were
homelessness, treatment, mental health, partner violence, parenting support, housing,
and programming, returning home, human-trafficking, and school support. Although
there were many challenges connecting with individuals our staff were available after
hours to assist in any way except for crisis calls which were then directed to the crisis
line and other supports. Most cases and targets were all met with successful
outcomes. A lot of outreach and engagement took place via email, phone calls,
presentations, booths, and package drop offs. Training in circles and administration
was all part of the process, and all workers did very well in obtaining the skills needed

in providing service.




SUCCESS STRENGTHS

Three clients engaged in treatment, hired & trained a program facilitator who

completed mediation and domestic violence training, ongoing support with aftercare
worker, ability to support the client we serve after hours, rapid response circles in
addition to follow up circles. Developed positive support from other agencies, direct

support from Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services management.

CHALLENGES

Funding, additional aftercare worker required, connecting with clients that have no
phone/ways to communicate, lack of money to break down barriers of client success,
ie: phones, bus tickets, food/shelter, emergency items, transportation. Program
needed funding/resources to assist clients and offset costs and had to seek out

donations for client’s basic needs ie: clothing.

EXPERIENCES AND OBSERVATIONS

Aftercare worker and facilitator had developed trusting relationships with high
barriered clients, clients reached out to aftercare worker for supports/resources when
needed, able to keep clients safe and prevent relapses. Circles provided clients with
the opportunity to share/speak and be heard in a safe place. Feedback from/with
circles were positive, and participants expressed the importance of everyone coming
together to support the client and fill in the gaps for success. Built rapport/

relationships with several community partners, worked together to assist clients.

OTHER SERVICE DEVELOPMENT UPDATES

Clients’ experiences: mental health/addictions, unable to access programs/resources
due to lack of support and funding. Ability to reduce the risk by having the
opportunities to access funding for treatment/shelter/basic needs. With the number
of clients this program serviced there was a need for additional Aftercare worker,

on—coll/qfter—hours worker, and coverage.



NIH KEEWAYWIN (MY JOURNEY BACK HOME) PROGRAM STATISTICAL REPORT
APRIL 1, 2022 - MARCH 2023
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BARRIERS IDENTIFIED

+  Mental Health; Severe Anxiety/agoraphobiaLegal Aid Applications

«  Family members not following through to attend Circle or following
through with weekly plan for childcare while ACW visits with client.

« Lack of immediate recommended services

+ Covid19

« Non-Vaccinated clients and participants

« TTC’s No financial assistance to help retrieve children from their dad.

- Unable to return second contact call to Inmate

SUCCESSES

« Clients engaging and participating in MJBH-TTP
« Agency involvement and offering services
« Clients return/answer calls

- Band Representatives engaging and want to be aware if/and when
their band members are involved in off reserve agencies

« Grandfather opening the Circle

- Client asking for other services and supports
+ CASincludes MJBH in the services plan

« Correctional Officer informing inmate of MJBH
« NAN Legal program referrals

« Client has evolved tremendously in a short time by taking initiative in
following through with appointments, phone calls and keeping
ACW informed when help/ossistonce is needed.

TYPES OF AGREEMENTS REACHED

« Agrees to counselling
« Agrees to have our MJBH-ACW-be involved in plan
« Agreed to have child visit outside of home during her counselling

« Open to supports assisting

ORIGIN OF INQUIRIES

+ Phone and emails, in person
«  Muskrat Dam Female Youth, Sioux Lookout Male Youth, Eabametoong
+ Male Youth

« Various Agencies; ONWA, Beendigen, Nokiiwin, DILICO, BZA CFS, NALC,
plus other organizations from Timmins, Moosonee, Sioux Lookout, North
Bay, Sault Ste Marie.
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Human Resources
2022-2023
Annual Report

NISNAWBE-ASKI LEGAL SERVICES
CORPORATION (NALSC)

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER: COLETTE SHWETZ
HRIS/TRAINING COORDINATOR: MELISSA SCHOLZ

RECRUITMENT COORDINATOR: LIBERTY GORMAN



STAFFING SUMMARY 2022 - 2022

116 Total NALSC Staff 6 New Positions
32 Total New Employees 5 Short Term/Long Term
(FT/PT/Casual/Contract) Disability Claims
12 Contract Employees 2 Employees on Leave
3 Employeefs Trgnsferred within 0 WSIB Claims
the organization
1 Employees Retired 0 Resignations

COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS
&=

NEW ORGANIZATIOAL MODEL (NOM)

In the Fall 2022, the NALSC Board of Directors, management and staff began the process of
restructuring the organization. Out of this process, it was identified NALSC would develop
and implement a New Organizational Model (NOM). After various consultations, a new
organizational model was drafted and presented to the Board and staff. As the
restructuring process began, it was identified new positions would be needed to support

the new structure. We are currently developing those positions.

The implementation of the NOM started early 2023 and is currently being implemented
along with the hiring of new positions to support the new structure. The NOM is expected to

be in place later this year.




COMPENSATION

All NALSC positions were being evaluated for pay equity across the organization using current job
descriptions. With the assistance of a compensation study along with information already in
place from our pay equity study, draft salary bands and pay grids were established and all
permanent positions were placed on salary grids, with the exception of any new positions. All
new positions created from the NOM are currently being evaluated and will be placed on the grid
accordingly as the NOM is implemented. Training and policies are being developed for staff to

support the new compensation process.

PAY EQUITY

As we continue with the implementation of our New Organizational Model (NOM), we are also

working towards pay equity to align with pay equity legislative requirements.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

COVID 19

Restrictions lifted early 2022. Currently on a modified hybrid work schedule till September 2023.
Many NAN communities have now lifted restrictions and staff are now visiting in community to

provide education and client services.

NEW LOCATION

NALSC is now in the process of moving locations to Chapple’s Building — 101 Syndicate N Suite 101.

Our current location at Arthur Street did not meet all our organizational needs.




SIOUX LOOKOUT

Many Health and Safety updates were done including improvements to the air quality system,

safety stop on stairs and overall security of the building.

This office received a major renovation to improve air quality & overall condition of the

office space.

RECRUITMENT

NEW POSITION

We now have a Recruitment Coordinator that oversees all recruitment and hiring processes.

PROCESS IMPROVEMENTS

There have been many improvements to our recruitment process including new processes for
finance coordination, broader postings to reach more NAN communities, improved on-boarding

with HRIS visual training, and improved personnel file management.

CAREER FAIRS

Both the Recruitment Coordinator and HRIS/Training Coordinator initiated the first ever “NALSC
focused Career Fair” at Confederation College that included only NALSC programs and services.
ALL programs were represented, and it was a huge success with many students visiting all

our booths.



WHERE HAVE WE MADE
IMPROVEMENTS?

HUMAN RESOURCE INFORMATION
SYSTEM (HRIS):

We have made many updates to our HRIS including community
information tab for staff to update community services contact
information, developed a user manual, and developed

additional reports to pull data.

NEW HR STAFF:
NALSC as also hired an HRIS/Training Coordinator and

Recruitment Coordinator to assist with all HR functions.

STAFF TRAINING:

The HRIS/Training Coordinator has begun the process of having

staff update all Health & safety and compulsory training.

NEW ORGANIZATION MODEL (NOM):
Once fully implemented, the NOM will improve organizational
functionality through structuring positions to balance program

oversight.



WHAT’S NEXT?

We will continue to work towards full
implementation of the New Organization Model,
hiring of all new positions, and work with staff on

change management.

We will continue working towards Pay Equity

across the organization.

We will change from a modified hybrid work
schedule to all staff working from their designated

offices on a full-time basis.

Continue with training for all staff in all areas of

Health and Safety and mandatory courses.

We will be working with Finance to streamline and
improve the process between the financial

software program and the HRIS.
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(1)

FINAL THOUGHTS

Nishnawbe Aski Legal Services Corporation continues to explore
opportunities to grow and expand in indigenous justice programs
to better support and provide services to the NAN Communities.
With that comes continued growth in our staffing compliment

and expansion of the Human Resources Dept.

The Human Resources department will continue to support all
staff with their Human Resource inquiries and needs with the
overall goal of promoting well balanced, employee/employer

relations.
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Muskrat dam First Nation

Pikangikum First Nation

Whitesand First Nation

Lac Seul First Nation

WINDIGO FIRST NATIONS

Bearskin Lake First Nation

Cat Lake First Nation
Koocheching First Nation
North Caribou Lake First Nation
Sachigo Lake First Nation
Slate Falls First Nation
Whitewater Lake First Nation

KEEWAYTINOOK OKIMAKANAK

= Deer Lake First Nation

= Fort Severn First Nation

= Keewaywin First Nation

= Macdowell Lake First Nation
= North Spirit Lake First Nation
= Poplar Hill First Nation

= Kasabonika Lake First Nation
= Kingfisher Lake First Nation
= Wapekeka First Nation

= Wawakapewin First Nation

= Wunnumin Lake First Nation

MATAWA FIRST NATIONS

= Aroland First Nation

= Constance Lake First Nation
= Eabametoong First Nation

= Ginoogaming First Nation

= Marten Falls First Nation

= Long Lake #58 First Nation
= Neskantaga First Nation

= Nibinamik First Nation

= Webequie First Nation

Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporations
Toll Free: 1-800-465-5581
(T) 807- 622-1413

807-622-3024
nanlegal.on.ca

(F)

WWWw.

= Attawapiskat First Nation

= Chapleau Cree First Nation

= fort Albany First Nation

= Kashechewan First Nation

= Missanabie Cree First Nation
= Moose Cree First Nation

= Taykwa Tagamou First Nation

WABUN TRIBAL COUNCIL

Brunswick House First Nation
Chapleau Ojibwe First Nation
Matachewan First Nation
Mattagami First Nation
Flying Post First Nation
Beaverhouse First Nation
Wahgoshig First Nation

(Bands not affiliated
INDEPENDENT BANDS with any Tribal Council)

= Mishkeegogamang Ojibway Nation

= Mocreebec Eeyoud Council

= Sandy Lake First Nation

= Weenusk First Nation
(Peawanuck)
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ON EVERY CHILD MATTERS M40
NISHNAWBE ASKI LEGAL SERVICES CORPORATION SUPPORTS AND RESOURCES

Argyle Community Support Program (For Indian Day Schools only)

24-hour Residential School Crises Line

NAN Hope

Hope for Wellness Help Line

Talk 4 Healing: Talk, Text, Chat

Native Women’s Association of Canada MMIW Crisis Line

Indian Residential Schools Survivors and Family

NISHANAWBE ASKI NATION TRIBAL COUNCILS:

1. Independent First Nations Alliance ° 2. Keewaytinook Okimakanak Council * 3. Matawa First Nations * 4. Mushkegowuk Council
5. Shibogama First Nations Council * 6. Wabun Tribal Council * 7. Windigo First Nations Council * 8. Independent Bands
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<1DO"9-A

Vi dA> NLKPd-A22022-2023

Pac-V-A -AlfA-V-A Py<NPM PP-VE<NP-
PNP-AbId-* 2022 VA o7 VPAICP o
°C PP P-AYNIM™ VoA 2023.

P-VNo N<Kdo9:'Aa Y%7 PLCM VAINM L
L'‘ACS9:Aa.. obo b<AbNP N<Kdo9:Aa PYA
bLPa A<cac d? d<C da:Aa [YPIb o°C
<blfbS. LL-ACS9Q-Ac dae-V-A bY<NPM™, b
d47M°ClY N<°do9-Abld* ©°C Po DPL° DCal
"CLAL ACQ PP obba N<°do9:Aa bLL UL
o™ ©"&Kd bP ADU-Q* VNKdobodoo' Pb
Sbo’. bPASYZI<® d-Voba M7<FCM™ A€ bAS
obU' bASYTao<® ©°CAd bPAN-9-<C* M-I<LF
Y o"CAd YL by °CLdM PPd-Vo ™ 9N<”
do M. LL'AKS9QAc dacV:A b5<NPM bAC
< [-ATA -V PP™>aCM™ LPaAba. lLPapP
NAM LPaAba. [-AASPRAMN 9-AAS-Ar AP
dCPY a2 cb= <D379'Aa ©"C MP?>allM™ b-AP
">alol da-V-A ‘Al A-V-Aco.

VdS baA<KC dacV:A AFADA :dae:V:
A ©°C @o%0 bPC-A bordo AbUP <°C da
VA -AFAD-A’ bAS LL-A ACbP P"90Cl-A

a PC ADUM www.legalaid.on.ca.

Duty Counsel Calendar and Zoom Advance Courts
are posted on the NALSC website

www.nanlegal.on.ca



bP<PNobUP LFPaAba o’
bASNVo-CdPMPN

o "PAPYS 1, 2022 Ao TP-A</° 31,2023

NAN AO48 CERTIFICATE BREAKDOWN APRIL 2022-MARCH 2023

B Criminal

[ Family and CYFSA

B ciil
by<PIPr™ by CLAM <17°9-A’:
uuuuuu y Legal Advice y Counsel Days Duty Counsel Days Public Legal Education
y: (virtual) (In Person) (In Hours)
1 staff Lawye i




NALSC =*Ad* doPaba’ bATb<-A-CL:<-~ L>C N*>D




byM~CLAMm ACKY rP dYyTAM of bASNVoCdror VPYPPFbo, VYAC ©°C VIKYNIPSE 1 Ao
Y 5V A<g'. Dd by CLaM »°C 480 Bd by CLy

N<do9-Abld* AN/ doA blalb b<C* VAI(o<q* <DU LL-ACS9-Acd, ©°C

VGt PP ALCM VP PodLlbo < .

P PodLA-A APV-V-A’ Dac-V-A [PV <-Va BP - 15 S8

®  VbblL1lol” Vbb<:bN' b'b:Adac <d - LL-ACSYTA b-AIMBNY 9aPblac <M b AYSI <PNobU
LPaAbo” ©°C b'A<d<Nalbo<*. LM -ACLIA-A> DLJ-AAPC 2023.

e LlLcd/dene - dae VA CATAV-A ©°C P A blLo<ool LL-ACS9YAa DI LL-A (S9Ac
V:A<d<NalbodP Pa KN = o°C CCV.

o bY[Adaoc <" LL-ACSYAc, VA-Co<dd Co"A ALACBUP ACAa PN Lbo'dPb-A:Co<", o
"C V:A<do"CodP LL-ACS9AAa V-LATbUP.

e b<I-Va"(M™ AVEA VAD" 9ba b<dCNal9 b-ArY<NPL b%IM"CL9c

e b AYNATM AD" JCPY JI<KNP:Aa, b-AFAZTAM JCPYy JI<NPAa ©°C M7fCAao <t 2obs >
M bASLL-AdAa o< .

® AN Acoc'A b<PNoc’ I'Va I79-A’ N+bo" MMo<o [P PoJLNM

o (Oo™DAPC MCbP NKMd-ALPocAba, M<-Va (o <d bASCbP -ACLYAa, LA NKMIAJILIC:Aa b
ASba Vo lbNP o°"C AV-A DKNMCAa.




PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

a2 VA CAPAV-A by<NPM POU-Y -VCGAPPoILM o"PAPC 2022 Ac”
FPP-AAPC 2023

DCKNP-A bYdD>:A> »°C P "PodLA-A:

e VP-VPNal® PAKIL-A-V-APIM bPLLeOCM FT7bPY DALNP-Ao-
<° ob’AU9

° LL-ACSA A a2 V:A PTPodLY-A’ - V-APAM bYI7bM dae:
V:A Lo<o *Aa DI ©°C VAICo<® DPNLdo9-Vor AU9

L POU-<d b)) NKdo9-Ac 2

° a2 VA AlPAV-A DUuD> bUb'U<Lo P Po<dLIA’ (Cobobb”
PCLAao+ <% P "PodLIA’, <hN bICPY -AlA-V:-Aa, AL=KN'Ta bP
"PodLAa o <Y)

° bDaA<PNo’ <-Va bASLII™AM balC™P: JIKNP-A’ ©°C <179-Aa

2>

e DA baC™P - bAS Llal' PabCl9Aa ©°C <°P-A NAa-V-
AP

® b AMKNAIOM b AAPANYAM

(] PPD>PL° balC”P o°C LAY NKdo9-A’ b-dATbUN
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b)) Do VA
<I<KNP-A
2022-2023

bP<PN® LS~ VI<d/ - bcd boba

o b

dr4, > PCPI bed dA<NP-A. 2022-2023 o PMo<o PC

dofaV 4P daeV-A DA I<KNP-A’ (>4d') bed bAS
Cb. DL bA>, bc) dO79:'A’ Pba'd<Ct DD "bcd ACe:dr
9:-A bY<PNo-dP", bAC"U <"PCPaAb’> 718.2(1) N<K"do9-A

DoV



bdMdNrbUM:

° Mo bced d379:Aa Aco < bLLo™ dofaV 7P, a7dAd:A 9 ©°C addd
A 5 AU9, bN<Kdo™ ACedl9:Aa P MPFCadooP bcd NLKMl-Acc°.

° FCbAbUY bAP °C -V7b™ bP PP bPPCI"bd” d:Va bASYSM<o’ LLo-APNL
QAo MPY<C bed NKMIA-LPaA%Aa o°C P D Co-<d AC?
bor’A QA To<o" LIM"dI-V:-Aa.

° P<PNobUY bA™bPLD’ AP"9aCl-A’ d379-A° Aco <t Pr. Dd bcd < dba
baabC-VolLM APV MPSCo LIMdAV:Aa I <-Va bACPCL

° P<PNobUY MP7PoLM bed bLPaAIM ©°C baablVellM bdD>-Ac DSMa-A.

° °"C PDFCodP -ArY<NA-Aa JCPY DNKPo3-Ac bASM<a M I<NP-Ac (N<
"doQ-Aa, DPLD>-VP-, baablA-VM, byICLIAMN, ©°C PN<KHod<Y) ©°C bed
PP-1-<d<Na A DB [PV o LL-AKS9-Ac.

>d bcd bLPa AN DTN VDS bed ‘ACLYAa DC doSaVA™P bACe DI PC ol
Cas”™ LLAKS9 Aa bYD7bCL. DC 167 bPIPCV<o ddA-A” PYAT Pb7PC? MMTo<o -ACLd:
Aa V0LPadl DL bP>. Pd bLPaAIM™ PPSC o°C PLPadl J4:CATCas™ NLKMd-Aa DL
bPADN.




b)) d37°9-A’ bA'd<Nabo<® PL bAM

PN PC 2022V <9A% 'A-’ babo’ bc) bLPaAY o°C Un Ade, babo’ baablA-V/ P
<N l3<Y bLb UKo o V<IN "ds” PMDoolboo® V72" bPaPYbIM P-VN.oabVd
o bJACbLL PN<Kdo9A LLP>ADA’, bP TV NM Coba b<PNal™ CAY~ N<doIA
DPL-<Y, DYbNN-A NKdod-A’ ©°C bal bASNVoCIP’ N<Kdo9-A.

b)) JI<LMdbad dP7 P<I<Na 3t DU @@ ACAc VLA™ bLb"U<Loo [PP-A APC 20
22 dolo "P"cC bcd PUKLAcCdrP-Aa”, bP-ABU <PPC > o°C o b PNLKII-ALPa
Abo. TV PPIAUQ ASobd:Aa K7Pa9M <:Voba® VAI" Qba CAd™ b<LPPPac-<* L
Ya’U<olba, CAbbDMVCELP ©°C << o"(s' bed ILMdba PLSM-M o°C PY[-V-<Y
<d-Voba VAD™ bcd byodlbUP.

MPP-AAPS 2022 Un Ab-,bobo® bc) baablAV/ Pd<Nal-93° o"C PYSC>° D>>C bPL:
Ao < bed baablA-VI/baablAVM VA™bPLP>Va bPLIADM. DL bP

IPbUN Pod<o® A bAMbUY V-APZ<NPLPM baC™P DPNKdoIA <37%'Aa ©°C Aco
‘A daeV-A 1079 Ac.

>d bcd b AMYKNPZAINN ©°C <4 b7IM"CLY Dda b'n™N PP PoILI-<Y <PU JC< b"b
No"A 2022 b%dM, 1 M2, bP PodlY daV:Aco bASHID>’ <°U bcd NP

d:Acc® bLPaAbUc". <doA bc) b<<Nalbo<® dodlfbU® bcd bAS ba:VolbUPI
dPaAba ©"C bLPadPY bASo-A :Va baablA VPIZIIC bobo’ bed bobo’baabl
AV U Abs ©°C bP<<Na M bed V0LPZaAbo<d Pd bcd bobol™ bLFP

a AN <9A° 'A>? ©°C oo bLC.

dolL bcd “AFAV-A "P?90Cd P bed PUVoCdP-Ao<:d" bPYIOC L™ VI, Po Po
bt bcd ©°C oo bIC, bobo’ bcd bLPaAY b<A<Nal-V:<M DPL° PCAMCLIL
A VELPCM <LPa"S™ 2022.

>d bcd b APYKNAPZAINN P<I<No <N PYLALA babldol <:<ALPSY 2022 <°U P-V
No'abVdoe D?UuP, MPI-V<oo' P"Ac(l-Acoc® bcd AUT ©°C laP<Loot V-ANLAM

@ bYD"bAM,



be) bLPaAIM ©"C baabdVelaMm
bAKN/M

DC b)) bASYKNPM os' (<Y bY<PAM. d:C° (6) bad bLPaA9
M o°C d:C" (6) bc) baablAVM bAKNPM.

NnL® d4<neP-AblY - P-VNo'-d<o"
bobo’ bc) bLPaAY, o bIC
bc) bLPaAY, b O

bcd baablAV/, 1 PO

3235V JA<NP-AbldY - P-VNo' CAC®
bcd bobo’baablAV/ - Un b

b)) baablAV/, JI3*hD9d 4C°

bcd bLPaAY, 1e<" UM

bcd bLraAY, J7 <<

9-a°9 d<NP-AbIM - PdVNotabVdo
bobo’ bcd bLPaAY, <A A

bcd baablA-VY, GAY dcAoc

v/ =t d27°9-Abl - P-VNo‘abVdo

bcd bLPaAY, 5"« P

bcd baablAV/, D% <L
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Aoco-A b<PNoc
- C bba'VoIl ™
<I079-A° ¢
LL-ASS9-Ac
b<PNoAM™ -o"C
b-A-P-A-V<PNcM™
<07°9-A



2022 - 2023 STATISTICS
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A+ & - & e et Ny & o )
#\.ﬁr o A% . ﬁf) s @53' - & o {\_@ § o
&g & & £ &S S
'ﬁ? & ?9" e %-QF' * E 9 ‘E:i-&
B 2022 - 2023 Clients Assisted
bP"PodLAd <

bA”-b TDAPL bPIPCV<o ddAA°, DLD-AAPC 2022 A<o PPLA-AYAM DC by<NPM COV [
PLA-A PP PadLAM V-ACAIIM A8 Vol -Ary< NP:Aa MPaPaP 9YAICPY V-ArMY<NPZIOM.
DL bC<Q7UN, Dd by<NPM MA 1ADDM VP PoJLAPY <PC 079:AblMdY ©°C blaocCbP 1I19-A
a o'C A<KN P*A baPCo<dP IM9-Aa PaANM. 4N ALMdba’, Plo L4 DY VafP’b

XM VPabodao < bP PC-V<o dA-19.

b>No M by<NPM

2022-2023 P-<d<Lboda* [ VPPNo M. blPa'Acl b-AM< PDPNabo <’ 457 aP7b® ID79-A ¢
do9:A ATAVA. bYy<N:A bobo’ PAAKPCabo:<® <P°C bDI AlfA-V:Ac'. o VCV<oP ACba,
V7 P-VNo'<d<o P’C b<PNo AN o°C b-A-P-A-VKPNcM <179-A°, ©°C VL <PU <PU P-VNo
bVt DC bDa Al baablAM -AFA-V-A°.



b<:<:LAaoc<d* ©"C P?PodLAA DCI-Aa?

Tb- VNY<oP 9:ba bA"b PC-VLo" ddP*A’ bPabolbP, <PNobo'<d’> Acoc-A
<PNo3'A ©°C aabNr/A -AlAT-A’ (2*Jc) ©°C b<KPNIAM o"C b-AP-A-VKPNoM ('Y MT
oM T VPLLM PLLLAM PSP 429:Ab<PNa Pt ©"C LL-ASSaA'A b APY<NPLIMY.

oPF<a’ PULAPC ©°C VNZIM PLL-CPaS, (= Jc/'Y) JI<NP:A bobo®b bCw? PL™ o°C

b7<NP” bYI"C(LY Dda 9N P<I<Na 1 V-t NP7 DPLL VP AD7FA’ dolo b<PN™ ba
ablAM 079-A> ©°C LL-AKSATA b<PNoM™ ©°C b-AP-A-V<PNo ™ <D9-A°. DC b"P~ bY<NPP
VDR VPN bPIKCPY PHYPCY PPYIOCPY o°C PY7< b:AM9d:Aa, ©°C PoPOCL 9PADL
rary bASy<NPM. DL PYNAFAda o VN7odlPbNP o°C PPPoILAM I-<IPN bPVIICM™ o7
C bPDAMbdIM Aco < DC bAMSM<o™ -VI'NISA N<do9-A’. b(w? N Dda PL7PCY

PNOCPY dodo bPaA<KPNo™ oV:Aa 3794 D> DI NP7 DPLL-VPA P [o<oofP PC
<NP-A o<1 DC NPT DUA.

VAND bdM TPP-AAPS, PPM<o <M VZINATL® 1do o°C ddo-Alc"Nd* NCA
<I<LNa LM Plo = Je /'t

I<NoL91'Aco oA PIr bAba<<(lo LL-AKS9-Ac

P-ALY<NPLM <°C AALY ddo-ATo"Nd. da PPl To<o VbCV VPOUM d-Voba

APPLABUP PV 079:Abld VP dd<cac I}, VP 773:V<oP [PV "N doL bNA"L <
LS 9POCPY. aPal VHM<o' P-VNo ALNPA ©°C aP™b Ad VPCo<Y, PUclbU® Vb 9PV
AOUM -Voba', bCdT<M.  Vebo Lb VZ<AbUGP, POUN 17 du o"C(LmbolA’ JI<NP-Ab
b, 17 dv ToALNP-A d379-A°, do"FaV 47°P7 DPLD-VP-<d ©°C o"Cd"borA’ bo>ACLA
M 4379:AblMb Tl LPaAYA P aAba ©°C MamIPSC™ bAM9)-Aa. doL bPSb <LSD
L PV b<NPol" <°C aablAV:A ©°C boU <PNo’ P<KIb’> T1dc 17 9vu o"CDborA

p)

160 TPP-AAPC b7dM Ta, PCVAIU-<M <PU AL ML o"C(DborA’.  bl? ©°C Pda PL7PC
<M MUM o°C MLACPY aP™b° bda-Ay UKPNAAY oV:Aa ©°C PaP b dM bACco <I<LM<b
a. PaPbd<M 47 PPLL-VP. PAAVRNCG MP<<Nal A Dlo ad™b® bPaA” -Va
baablA” <ID79-A.

fe PCB> MP <-LAM o°C PP PodLIM doeC:d7UN TPPAAPC bC? ©°C Pda

VP CGA I<LNala/ VPN Dlo -t U/t doA DI bN<KdoraM P-VNo <A< bASNVoC
Ao, VdL bPPM<o <4 DPda VPLI<Id<o bJACTbLE bobool DN <dod-:d AD>D>
’<PVbo: VP YodlPr D7P bYNASa:Aao<d CAd™ aP7b® daA NKPNAA oV:Aa bP 7NY
<AbBUY CF9-A o°C ALNP-A’. dC P dAC® Potb o¥b” Ad M2IMOCPY, wd™ VL o"CC I
YN APy <NPMNDaoc < NKdoYAc o°C MPYIOCP PC bASNVeCdPM PN do 9.




<4:dd, VIo<o" VPMCo'<d bLLAa o<}, VLIA 5<FCo<d VAD" AU9 V7AIMBUN. DL bPIYY
2:V<a" ddAA? POMALL? M7PCo <M bASba d<CL 9:ba AA bPAMKe b<<L:LAYI<M ©°C bLb™
U<LocANdaoc 't bLM<Ke. Sd7 Lb PV I'Va bP-U° VP [o<o Lb UL MIA b7<C AN b
PE7<MCo <, Pd<Ua o VILKMY o°C VaP"bd? o°C VLALLM LA™ Vio<o'. da Ad
Plod*Aao ‘ACLY-A’ PNoo o< DI 487 VPBSCLL blo<ko" A5MA ©°C VPlodY dba
NN VN A7TAdA.

Aogo A daA NKPNAA b-AlA-V/ bdlCo-d ILNP-A?

dofaV 47P7 daeV-A ID7A JIKNPA’ (>4d)P-U° PN fC Vy<IPCo <t PN doq-A
, Vu<PCo <Y ACbor*A bACE PI0%A’ ©°C ACTborA bACHLP  -AFAd-Aa ©"C babAbU
P Dd doSaV 47P7 bASNVeCIPMPC P-VN DUUD. oy’ VPI<Ko’ DC PaceV'A bobo”
b, Aco:A PNKP09-A bASNVCEL <°C PUAD DPL-A bobabCt N<Kdo9Q-Ac AU >4J!
PPLC® P-AdlCo <t I<KNP-A’ bPDLSC DP JI<NP:Aco DL AcoA daA NKPNAA b-Al
AV, bPS<PNobU

<PU LN b AbA-AlPA-V/ JI<KNP-AbIM. LN bAb-A-AlA-V/ I<KNP-AbI bobo ™ P-<-AMC<
Y o"C PARZKNPTY >4d" VPPN Pt APSZ<NPo ©°C VP P PodL M P> D°P Aco
‘A oA NKPNAA b-APA-Vo .

<4< AcoA oA NKPNAA b-APAV/ PPLCS VaPTbl! o°C VAN 4507 b DAL
AAPC 13, 2022. P<AbMKo VNPKC Db o™l Ca d:C° VP-AM</
DPALLI-AAPC 13 Ac” < dLPaS 31.

bNPY <o I<KNP-AA>? Posb?> VP-b"dNLL bP-AM<” - VP-AM<” 128 VV7 IY07b-’. I%17b
M PbArqL-<d MAPAM VLA b7T°CLIM Ac” -b%™ VN -V "™ bVS oo lbUY da-
A N<PNAA. L1 68 bY"b PV "Cod'a oA NKP>NAAa

V7AdCo<> bab”LbP °C APIMbUN Al P<PIbIdY o°C ADP PMCo<d JI<KNP-A’ Prol? &d
Lb PPPP UcCb’. <A da*A b'AFAV/ P--Va"C® MArYKNPLY dCPYy b-ArY<NPL Al DC

PLDIbIdY - 487 b AFA-VM, bDa:Acl b-AMCM, LPaAba bablCM™, b5 bAFM9-A d<Udba
Y, o°C PNKHo A BN, PBPCe M-V CAPDIYTAdS T DaANTY d<PIbIdY VA" b
YM"CLe M ©°C bd7M"CLY N<Kdo A bldY, b ASAFAo<d -ATA VAL, ©°C oA N<L
>CA*Aa ba VoM™ <379-Aa



<4< darA NKPNAA b AFAV Vo (dP° Mb-9Mr9d’/PPAN-9” oA P<PIbIdY bo bool V-
ALY b7’ baVo A, Mba-VrCICP, ToACNPA?, APCSao<* b

SLo<c bAP OPFb® Al d<PDCbIdY. AA VKPNo’ - bPYI-VC Al "bASLYTAM™, bPADU® 9P
ASETM VVEIM/bPADUC APAS P1- JYTMY/APASE-ACL 9ba, ©°C AP ASYT Yol bYI"CL9c T,
V-V (M darA NKPNAA, ©°C 9PV (M Lol <-Voba. VY b7cTVbILL Vb
2:C VPKN-9” - AA VAN-9” , 476° da PP? PPY<C bPMYTao<d ©°CAd da PY<C [PP]
- AYTAY Vbsd™ VADB AP <IPC o°CAd VKL Co<*. VdL 47:b° Vb VIPOMbUP b-barq
dao <t darA NKPNAA o ICLI-A.

<4< oA NKPNAA b ATAV L™ bY<IPC VAP b7 dolo V-V

PPyTol (bDPYTol, bobofo <t bVIASTSAbLUGP, LPaAba) b7M"CLAcl, b4y C LY N<d
o QAbId’, bAlA-VLI, JCPY. b'ACLbo<d ©°C P PodLlIAc oA NKPNAA -ACLY-A> <P
No-bU°.

oA bNLPaUP bPOMbUP, VPDCI"ALbLP, VIo<ofP, o°C V:VCP Po A"PbUP doL ‘daA N<
DPNAA adCLA-A Dd b7D"bM DI

® b APA V-ALT 95T CLd” (YT CLY ©"C/Ad bYT"CLY N<K"do9-Ac)
o <ae'V:A AAV:A P Volba

e - Jc  bANIPaPM/bYTAM/b<-Va (o<

o AAVALMNY/KISI Ao bP ValodP

® bba VMY -AFAV-A

167 T 49076 VBPCM MICPY oA NKPNAAa ©°C ACL VaoCA DfbU -

4%b° Vb"PCo <Y bA”b ba d<IbUP VADY bACLP APIFbUN. N7 bYD7bM bP -VVCL DN<L
Qo(dr* Ao << Dlo oA N<PNAAco ©°C bPYNS -ACLV-< LYTCLIMN N<KdoF-Ac T
afdPY daA'V:-Aoco oA bASYocTAdao b 18b> VaaC-A DMbUP.

17 P209A LPalAba b<PNa® ‘dacV:A -AlA-V-A by["C(LY N<do-Ac.
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b<PNo’ P-<L-b’
Da"CP-A <D079-A°
Annual Report
2022- 2023

bP<PNa*; <o L:Ca= - b<PNo’
Pa"CA d079:A b:d-Va'TY



bCPCAa bPVIPASTSAUP L <:<dPU PLPPLITOMCa PLD"b-do<d DL bPA> 2022-2023

&d™ Lb N7 bPAM V<P AbUP °C bPVI7MCodP do™ Lb &d[IMCa ofCaob. M
‘N b70<oAdao<d Vb VAU So7? PPN bYy<NPM. VdlLb o<, b7CUPM,

VS by<NP’ Q-G PKPIbIdY (2% d<5) o°C dCP by<NP’ (<o L+Cas) dCPy P<PD
blb ©"C bASY<NPao<d PC DUl IS COV bAS-AFAM ID79-AblM, COV PLD
DALY, LN -APAJ-A 079-AbIMY, CAC® P-VNo (Vold™S) D97 <o, T=N> A9
b AS-APAM A079-AbIMY, 0¥ V d<PIbI o°C WVa PKPILIM. PafP<Lod byICLIM
bVIPPSAPY 487 PP, D7bNN bASANAM P lfaP<od V-A CLIM bICL bASKIAY
VAT PTGV, o7 C Y7 PaP<o <M bYD79LbY A’ bPM<o DL 2020 VA,

b7D7b bt ASModbo e bASKISlaoc <Y, bAS-AFAM <379-Ablb, <JC"P AU bAS-
APAM <379:AblMb, ©°C P-VIodbo - MAFANAPY VLA™ bAS 3797 MP-VM. P
U<t -V7b" 90 M VP"9o-CPY PbP-VRrCICP PPV,

PPNaa’ dC Ta b<PNo P<:db> PaCPA AYD7bCY 9-AP7 CIV o°C TV DA> DU
vey<nr. Vo™ ]ILKNPY bP by™ bPY<NAQ? APFKCCTUY o°C VDS, Vi PYAT
b7<nr¢’, 9P P-V<o P> NSy, C¢VCGb’ o°C C"Vodo?

MP Iy o7’ bP-AlL-Co<d DU.

d7da® V7 b<o N9 <LPC OOV o°C o LU ba®q. oAPNa’ JC PC COYV. A<
- dC PlLoY PC NPT 4¥%7 VNaP<L<ot CF VUY<KPA 9P 5<PANK? bALo-C’ ="C PL<L
o’ Pr. CF bU Vb’ o™C bNKAL:A'b b<o MM o°C bNLKAL Vba VI bUP DL<o
S, bPba'Vo<Cao da So?’. PPNNd’ VIo oCPY bVINSIPY DD bPI<o bICL
o C DL DTbNN b APIM VIaAol VP-V<AM D"bN7 .

bP-UM P<LPIbIEY o°C byIM"CLAMN PP MoCbra. ocaa’dldac’ OPFL® VA, 9b7 AN
8, VARIPMY PPN bYD7AAPM 487 VIo<o [P-V. V-U<M DL dD79-A Vb V
P"ACPY APICb< VbACboo'. bPY7NOU? °C CN AN AXoDa? DL bYTACLY Vd
P MAb9 A7T°CU” KPNaboAcl ANS AC D N<do V:AbIdY. PN I V
PPACPY @2 obe Vabllolr AAAAcc® PTAC-L -V-A b ATo<cAlTT P> D7bLIM o°C A
P> M7 V<PNo M -A<™ 9P"9cCPY PN oY VIoSoo AAPAco. 97
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[LoAM9-A <DO79-A?
- VEIA>? N<PD-A
2022-2023

bP<PNa -&2Us
U
MoAPI-A <D79-A° bobo b

bPIPC-V<o ddP-A’> VN <PM<cP bPP<KAbLNP, MoAra-A N<K"9
oc3-A dD79A’ MooCLb> oA LL-A<S9-Aa. b-LAMbUP, bYA
aocd ‘AFA)A b<aAacod\, o°C

bYAJrbUP D"bNP-A d37°9-Aa. A" PMKod. §d= PYA" oaPl
92> 9bC:V VP9 MbUM PAP DL bAl'b AP PU<o'A DC V7P
, caa’dlac® OC PC b7<NP<Y VP b°PCM KPNa Pt Dfo °
C blo<oo" d079-Aa PP PC o LL-AKS9-Aa PL bPAS. L
<8, bl bba dA<IFbU MY bPA'SLrCY DL bPAN
2022-2023 oYo bPAN.



>d P"bNY bA<oPao<® AUY PYyN JIKPCY bLL UKo o P D7bNN P o"C VAU 9
ASTo<oo" b7 ASCACboo LK™, bPIYI-V<o bPPKABUP PLo <oAd'<d PbNN
VP <VYd<o ™, &d” Lb, PbAolCM PLdD-<M bPYADICPY VP ADCCM bAXoPLbP <07
9:Aa <°U LL-AKS9YAa. bLb"U<LooP bPYy<PCM CAd™ bdCdo <> bAb-A< Pabo <M, Lb
“U<LoMI*A dlCAa, LYo dAbAba ACAa, ©°C PYAT TN PYAI<BLU® T LL-ALSA:
Ao o"C Plo<o.

N7 bP-AKMbUP bPADCo<Y bPIMbUP DL bPADY PLS/ DMbU° o"h" PSb<d PbNIU-A?
bPOCY AA N, ANdde PbNPA DN<KdoIT A ALKMAb?, bP-ATAJdY 95A] ©°C

PPPoUA- V- bPILI A NS BbNL. ANS, Tb” bPPClaoc <M A< 2022, AMJ:do
LL-ASS9-A bACM PDLbo <> DU OOV bLb"U<LoMI-A’ bP N<KABUY bPDSIM Ad V
o7 AYPbUY JA bACe-MILb. PYbNP-A <J373:A N¢ bobo

"Us +9:9%, Poo”bt VR U® Acd <% bIMfbUN ALT:-DN LL-AKS9-Ac™ DI bPPS
<o (M od'Acc® bPADUGT TN/ . D"bNP-A bA<oDM bKNPM AN bP (>N =Y, b
Snd DC (AbPLY), ©°C AP PP (K"PPba ©7C b>" dD79-A, A< LD PYA” <PNa
‘L blMrafooP 1CGV-Ac o°C bDSCM™ b7AIMBUY D"bNN DI PNCGALY T1b™ VablCl
Y DTNN baablAMT bACe-AMAIT MPb7"b o blMCP.

Dac-V-A D73-A> (Vio -La”, AV [P7, JN° dd-AP) PL7PC-d PP NPV LML
L-A<S9-Ac, VPAIUM ACAa AANJ™ -VLPL®, LTS 3¢ o°C TYPIbN. P-ArY<NP1-
Y DPLDVPd !, PAA, ©°C PPLba ©°C DPLbo S VLTTACPY LoArM9-A PN<K"do9:
A bIMPbUN P L7d-APL:bP <daeV:A bAdobUP o°C Py< NP-<d 9od* MP7PoCIPY LL
A<LSYAa VDGl Aa<d® NALV dacV:Aa 9DCP.

doA ASbBNPA oNoFA o°C -ATAILA L-bNP-AS (UDL7) 10-9-A> Moo (b V-ACL
LN (b5N) Kb% VVPY<NP” <PU - A TbE MAFA-V/ bl NNP bVIPN SA bUP 90MCo <
P o"C A-UCLY-A Al DC ACAc. dca DG - 27702 PYAT o C° bAMNSALUP TP
V DP @@ LLAKSYTAa ©°C JCPPC® b LIAYA aodd NKdoVAc® bPCe:dMbNP AN
*ADA b AMAdao < <AD79-A°. DLP>AAPC 2022, TP-V-by<NPM PC-VP PodLA A<M <PU
a7b'a PASKPM oA bAS 7<C To ArM9-A NKdoTAct AU doA -ArADA 7bNP:
A o°C ASbUPA oNo3-A. DL P PodLIA> PRI ba dI<LIbU® P JILKPCM 41 N€
fe dCPYy JI<KMPC-Aa b'A CLM ©°C PI09-A Vol bY%cLP 9ba.




PV b7<NPM bP PodLM Plabod:a® LL-AKSYA P PO A (' CCd-A P V<AL bD>
MPPodLllac <t d1379:Aa ©"C b7<CP LrPa"U<Lolbo", AP JIKPCM doP K2, b-AlMY<
NPeL-b', VADUM COV PVIM-ArAY-AY VP PodLAY. PPM<o VP PodLbo<d <°C ' 9P
Cod <PU LL-ALSYAc, Dd «>4d' o°C V<2 <K b<NPM VADUM ALMbS MAd<NaLar
IN->cA 379-A° PPC P°Po JLObIdY. olooUa® VAMY<KNPLPY D7P ' dofC, U’o”
Ln>.

DL ToAl9A N<doA ID79-A P<ILPbU-A LN bPINo>ALbP DL PCad oes' AP:L.

L-<™ 9Pk 457 bPPICo < ©°C bPLPaAdaoc < PDrbUr B>d COV PPL° DCAr"CLIL
PNP-ALITY MAFAdY Mo<o" Vol(y doA M0 oAC? K9 P77 VPAMC Plo 41 d
2"9:Aco bLPaAbU 907°"PbUN.

LN AN, DD ToAMYTA N<KdodA o°C DN N<dodA <079 Aa PILI bN-K PPTY
bVIPPSABUP b-VM9l-Aa, L:<™ LIF™ bPPb 2022 bPVIALSABUP bPPCa9<oP LPaAba bP-b
Arrd-A7 BPC DL <D379:A> bA ADASVKAbUP. N? Ybo, o<’ </, bu"N<KS AN, v
PP/, TJeo AP, <u 2K, QA LbP', T >N, o°C AchV/ -L’K [PV PyIr-<M V-ARAP
Vb7 IM by AKX oot TI'bT Vb VPTArbUY 9ARKe. DL ToAMYA N<do9-A 4D79-
A PL°PC® VPb-ArD oba PC <A’ S'N bal o> PP 4N b7<NPM VP DN M P
SAPCMY bNabPLbP bASAD"bCL. olooN? MAFZ<NPLPM Lo dOP7 9-A

ry<APLPM DL DC N 9aNA-D>N.

Lr, doP 'n-U7 <379-A PL7PCY Py<NPLM o7 DPLPVP-K bPLPPNAM 9YADCPY AL
2022 bA>. L> -9:9¥ o°C b"°N L2 5<NP 1 Voo doA LL-AKS9Ac? b-APY<NPLL
ST oPA DAA, ©°C COV DPLP>VPQ P PPACUC™ o°C PZIMOCPY Plo <079-Aco°.

DL ToAP9TA DPNKdodA ID7VA ba A<KCL ob? D7P A 2022-2023 oo b<>, DY€
qLL:AY Ta CbPA 2023 o"Ct bA”b [PCV<o JdP-A.
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‘bCPA-V-A
JA\VARAVAYAN
<079-A°
Annual Report
2022- 2023

bP<PNa: <> A= - d379°A bobo"b



VICTIM WITNESS STATISTICS 2022-2023

2 59 8/6

bAD 2022, b<PA:V:AFA-V-A> <D379-A> PPCIPLL’> oL P<I<o DVolV:-A’ bPP-Vba:d
<FbUP °C bPbod<MbUY bPIMbUY oV bPP-Vba <I<MbUP.

LL-9/9 aaCA P"0CI-A> PIMbU° bC-bPY 2022 bPCM oSfCao™D VYd U-APA bCod
bCPAV-A ATCAILNP-APCY VP DD VYdU-Ad-Aa
DL b ob> C47U° PTPoCl-A.

N<doq-Aa 5°<K<KABUC AN/ LL-AKS9bMb ©°C A<Mdba® PCIP-<M -VAIUM b<AbU
oP N<do9:Ablb §d= Lb AN/ LL-AKS9AbIMb PYAT JI<C A Vo"="P bUP PADCPY
dN AN AN o"C P bor <™.

V-VDAPS 2022 -bCPA-V:A ACAV-A P PPoJLAd L1 doP N DY N<Kdo9-Ac/N
<doVTA bo"ATPLUY V-ALM b-bCPAIT. bPLIM LS P77, VS ALY, Sc b2, Sic?
UL, N7’ §9Ve o°C bP UoCdr” bPVILTY 4702 bPDIY.

‘bCPA-V:A AD79-A’ b<I:'Vo" TP/ bobo"b PCU° dc'<Y <P°C >4 bPLLIAD@ o <M2022.

d-C" b<NPM -bCPA-V:A N POUY b AAPAo <Y VPCAP POJLAM <PU 292D, Dd
Ne POC-L bPC-VoCbP MOCPY ©°C MMo<o (M bASL DM Dlo bIrfbUa. TPV PL"PCL
A< PLPaAVbo<d:d. PbdD>-<> VLI-ADCP.

‘bCPA-V:A> PILbo <> PLELM PP 9P-AaC-AP"9cMbUP dCP7 ©"0%' 9ol C o<dP. DL
bOrbU® A'boA>?. boPYbd-d TPP-AAFPC 6, 2023.

‘bCPA VA’ bobo’b PCV:<A<Nal9® 19°) dolo d%9<cA b-ACL ASbN Ao b-bCP
V:A bba<dLMbUP. "VPCo™ AcocA PLAD ASbNP-A bbC PA-V-A".

‘bCPA-V-A? AD79:Ac PYA” JILKPCY A€ VPO PodLAM. da PV b%<NPP
PPPPodLAN VN &d™ VDI,

AC® -bCPA-V-A b7<NP PC OOV N<KdoP-Ac MAMD @ LLAKS9-Ac bDloM o°C
MACA-V/ N<doQAc® AUA. bVITSABUP o P<Lod.



P9°Co> PaCLJA-Q?
P"9cC VS U<K9cCdPy:
aaCA P"9cCl-Aa

b AS dYSMyaoc <

p-VO(C9-A

aablA-V-A?

V-ALI$945?
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LL-A dYTAD-A°
<1D79-A’ - VI A>?
N<rd-A’ 2022-2023



bPo-ba<a o< PAN:bo<> DL N/ Ad PY<C bLb"U<Lo DL bP A> LM AN o
Pbo Y, IKNP*Ac ©°C bI7b<d'bt do”b AYKIPCY b AKIMNa oA 76> A,
<VbIrLb’. N7 D°P o"(D> borA b AFAVM D7FA’ P-<L-AFAV-N JdoA bCS9c b
ASKLZ KNP, PICo<? L79d-<d bASY<NIM oV D bor A b-APA-VM I1379-Aa. Vd
Lb ©7d%' o"CP bo A I dbad PId'dbo<d:a® 0°C bobo"b PIMbdbo<?. P-Co
<L MPSCod 9o =PbUN.

<1079:Aa ©"C JI<KNP-AbMb VTS V<M
bYD7bdAM NS d¥s7. DD d379-Aa

bloM™ V7dU-Ar:Aa ACba bba Vo[’ <417,
JdI A abUo A, babAII™ abUclD-AMN
- DoPDPL-Y O-Vo 1Y D

UdSTedd Mba'Voldol do™9 V4d U-AP:
Ao<®, b'AF-ADMbUY, VALK Va bld blrA:
VL:bP, b-AP-V<PNo’ A8 DVLIU-AP-Ac,:
ANV A A-b-bCPA-V-A’,bLocANdao<P, "N:bo
MoALNP-A?,

ba"ALNo 4:<AS”, AASKPN ™ byol <o, P
0'VY bba'Vol”, <487 b7I7Y

bAK oD, DoPPdL® 4:<dSS bLo<o ©°C DY
bNs' bDaAM bPSba Vol M. bP obobP
V7cdlMbNP Pyl JI<KNAY Veb-q LIAM VY
U-AA], ALKNP-Ac, oC Dbord =VC -Al
AV:-Aa VA<V o°C PP -ACLAM o
>A VQOdafPr. PP’adaoc’ o <D7bPM
©'C V¥ PSFAL® DL LI bPA>. DL VAP, o
AP ao’ doP VEIN-ATA VPOCPM TPV, bolCM PPLDCMY-<M b<S-LAM bASY
<N P DL A8 VEIAM CAFAV:-Aa, bYD"bAM, o"CP bord by<NrPol, <079-A
blrb, ©"C V7dU-Ad:Aa V<M LPa"U<LoM3-A LPaA-A, VLI, -V-LAC 4™
o C VKPM-VAaPY bla-VI.  b7<NIM PYyEr-<d M b<d<Nal9M, bl Via-VM -AC
L9:Aa, JI<NP:A LI-AAD*Aa, ©°C VP PPodLAM MAFAIMN 7D by dadooc ©°C I
PTACPY ADCPY VVI ASTSALM bASPI<KooP, D'bNS obo A LMADA AN o
aVy VM AA, bPSLI-AAdaoc <t TdoAlc"NdY, b>"N°" 7bAb> bPY<IPY o"C D bodA
bSTb>AM 4379:4A°, ofCa Ada :ad? ‘bce™ L°PP

1A, &2 448 o°C VRIU-ATA bPP 2022, >:'1d>c 48 o°C VYIU-A™<? 9Io<

ocaoc <t LAfAD A <5 A", Pobl™ o"CDbor A’ ToALNPA> LLAD A, 2/a!%/Cc
b bPLLIAKM, bPaPYbIM °C bP-AMZMOM VZJIU-APA Qo< D794 NP7, <
AJUA’ bec™ - Dalb'A’ Aco:A d379-A° ©°C @ P"bNP-A L-AFAD-A. JCPY P7Pod



LA bPPSCo <, abod-A’, ANAD-A -bCPADA, <<% b7SCN aboI-A%bLL™N
<o' ©o'C ‘AT bAXKoPao <M. DL LLAKSYTA AAFANL bAlMCo <M P-AFAILLY MV
M ASFSABUP T 99<nNP7Cl o°C MP I<KNPMY.

LA-A JYTADA LY baby®IC APPAN9-A? bP<d<Nalbo<d bP <o’ T "AA" 7
C Dlo bobo™b PC bPYICM™ Dd Aco-A <<AS” o°C VZIU-AP-A’ <1079:Aa P>’Un
> by CAPA-VA-N. 87, LL:A d5TAD N/ P-V:A - VPV AN 7 bPLILICo
<M AC DTbNKb d'bAs! AATAc” <PU >1¢7 bPLL:AAda <.

bPICo <Y bPd<Na Y 15"y Y2 ©°C bobob’ PAIUN NP7 dodolo <:dF

v o"C VHRJU-AP-A I079:-A°. LA-A dYTA-A-PA >L <d<Nal9-Ao<°® <°C V7
v’ bAY P7PodLI-AbIM PaeV:Aoo bP PodLAM. bAICo <Y ‘od bPPodla
o< bCb?>  PIKNPALIICY TPV bobobPY, bl (o> b AS ba VolbNP L-d
draAba.bdP>V:A’ b:AasAbUY ©°C doA ’Ndoa bY<CP VDRI Y<PCY -Va

LMroNdoa bAY<CP Pba-d<LMbU° A¢ VLI NPL™ PPV b7<NPM DL bob
o7 KNP ASLIDM JoP B D>APCAA <AD79-A° ©°C b-ASIP>-ALLP b-9M9
‘Aa APOMbUP VPIo9Lb VYKo 9:b> PC 't VPO A PC by<nNerM D

Aco-bCVETM bPLL-ACo<d <PU V™I bAY P PodLI-AbIM PPC VL A P
b"PC-<N ALPdba M7SIPM. bobo™b PYSMe D2UnD DOUM-V-AbIb bobo”bPY <a’dd
C1-A P>olba NKdoQ-Ac/-AV-ACA <PC A€ VPYKC. bobob PLS°

<PC PIJ <7 bACPaUY b7<NPaod DbNN ASbNPA LLo<o bPASLLoM. bo
bo"bt ©°C bY<NPM PYIL<N bLL"N<Ko o bablVel ™ :<f AFAV-A b-bCPAD:
LN "CVoCb PV ACA" PC V™I bAKY P PodLI-AbIM. b7<NAM 481N
b<L:A<NobodP, bYAM V- I<NalIM ACLI-Aa, VP PodLAM o"C bLL-AYAM. bl
b"U<o" P<d<Nalbo<® <°C V7dUo <8 VZIU-AP-A? D79-A°,

Ao AACVILA bPLIAAdac<C (NL7), LA-A JYTAD-A <AD79-A> P PodL A
(NL7), >Lt <L bPlalM Adfs, DTbNR/VYIU-APA bySM<e M <ISS-A D>AM CA
° 9(bUb"U<Lo") d“d<oA bP?AMbUN babUo ™ / b%<lfAdao'dP DM9-A’ (Y/Va) bVIv
P> b /b AKNAA LLPADA’, bPI-A-LATLUY <dPab’ DTbNs 9P-A
"ACA-V-AbTN (127), by-bNP"CMN A™-<Y CFAAc bLIAMN UC-Ac, 4°d>
L°PPL-A ©°C NP7 adv’ bl LPPPIA’. TPV b ACA-VM 481 o°C 47TV
<37%*Aa, V7JU-A"Aa, ©°C LL-AKSYAa VYIS o°C Ad ADY. JoA bVITSABUP
ofCo<ra V7Ada o}, TPa"U<LolI'A LPadLdA’ o°'C V:-LAa o< .

<LPC AVVP AN PSb° PPV 5 Voo I<KSSA DAPCP® Sb°UA” bPYIDC”

d:C"ATMCa o%a0° PFPLIOIMCa 2o’ bCPNo’ doLDl "4-Vo -9C°C LL 4D79-A°
DP"bNY babCP AP"9cCl-Acc® MNP DNalAM TLNPY bdP>:Aa, APP PoILAM 9Py
ADCPY o°C PP7<NPM. P<PNabU® o"PAFPC 2023. b7I"CLY Pa-d b'n™N




°"C oca ’PAMC2 <PC°P >L- PPPI-V:A <N 9-A’ bDSCo <t DPLPaAbod® --ACLY:
Aa bASoAUPaUP: bbo<d<MbUP >L: bICPY dae-V-A b7ICL9c P LL-A A57TA
2 487 PaP¥bd-d VPLI-A AM <PU CIV. LLA A5TAd-A DA VLL-LA; DD
480 VETAM A<NP:Aa, bI7bM, o"C D borA bo>A" CLAM, d379'Aa o°C VZJU
‘Ar:Aa V7<CP LPa"U<LoMA*A’ LPaALD-A, dY TADA, L>A, o°C b<PMVAaP* D
feV:Aa. IAT9 PYAT JAS ab”bialb’. %d™ Lb, DN%AdUa -b7™ Vo™'@"bLl bAS ab<
oP o°C KMla? d71:Aa ©°C bLL UL VaPTbd7.

TALKING TOGETHER PROGRAM

LL

bL1-A%Ta o<

‘A dYTAD-A 4079-A° PCA-Aa -ACLI-A’ - o"PAPS 2022-TPP-AAPC 2023

> - %
g 5 3 C <
o o I A
| o~ 1 -
- d ~ o - d - “ -0 (] . b <
5 | 3% ¢3¢ 39 57| % st 12 F] S¢| A
T | fe.l5¥9].33 S9 4] 22| F,4] 38| 2
= /Y @ ©|a x o 2 T b & Y 71 d N @ 2 2z
< 48~ o c - N v C d. v b o S ° RS
-0 a X o O] | o] 15 | d ¢ (Y v4 2 § < g
- DéN @ d—.° o g = E-P _9_40 %_DL /L%Q- B dJ oS
< V< o o ™ s | oS¢ b o d S g g <
i v b Aqg < o4l 5 o v e U J S
C o . EA SA A o dﬁ o ¢ 2 J
v a V | C U_'l [
v C'd U fas
O o q -
o VY 3 %_D
4 6 4 4 5 3 13 10 21
12 3 12 3 3 3 17 15 15
4 3 5 2 4 3 8 7 18
8 5 12 1 6 5 15 13 30
5 1 3 3 0 0 8 6 0
33 18 36 13 18 14 61 51 84




DbNPA b'bCPAI A Aco A dCVILA b-AaboPUY 079-A-VP-VAArY? JI<NP-A> PP
PCLb> <7°C° VA Vb VL<ODNo ™ by<NPM. &d” Lb Pb”PCa® D> NaPM <:Voba
FPECM Plo JI<NP:Acwo. L<d7Lb, 5%Gc 27K ©°C b'A™b ablAV/ b'v"N LN> bP P
“CP DN Do I<KNP:Aco VP Pl YblCPY o°C VPIN-bLY™ PECM <LS JNAdUM
ddfo d03"9Aco <LPC oocbe. VdLb PYNPNa oo’ o PP bLNYM P SCMdoA LI
o APC Dlo d0"9:Aao VP bd DM V-AFAJA7. Po-ba>Aa bANbo > PIMbU°
da oA rAa bLb"U<LoP M7<C. P7PodLA A’ ©°C b'AlfAdaoc <t JC VYdI-d7U° 4§
~ PP PodLllaoc <’ JCPY 079:Aa. PLPaAbUd b-ACLbo <" d'Vobo'AY’o"C PYSNob
U1 doA bNLIILLbP doL I<NP:A* VdLb AAF -b%™ dCba. VPAMP-VIMSABUP o"C P
VI ASPSAbUA b AY<PCo <Y DbNPA ASMA’. o"C D bor A b AMCACPY PU-<M
VAZSPM oA PNood<d Vb b'APo aN'. bI7bM FYIL-<d o"CPC-VoC-LY dCPY -
AlPAV-Aa ©°b PI0%Aa <PU bASISAbe Y. I<dSY o°C VZIU-AP-A?

bPYSPLE? L™ ce o b'V:A PTbbaablA-VY bAKNY <°C A079:A  b'<:VaC Aao:d
Y o"C PPA To VM A079:Aa 160 DL VOrbUN. Plolo® DL I<NP-A’ L7, o P7
bNs, bPAINArKe A< VPICPY bPSC:-Vo(dPPY, bP DUM bP ASNPY, bP ASYIM o°C
bP ACLAM bY<NPo AA bCVoCP MAFAMN bA SCVo(CPY. &d™ Lb, bA™b P>NoM™
©"C bPYbP"PodLM b7<NPM 4N/ AP-L bPCSfarAaoc <t ©°C bP->"CAaoc <t VPI(o:
I ALNPA?, o8 Cao™ AcoA PYbNs 12-29, VLIU-AP-A bACM P <dD7bCbod:a® 3
8, dobo"b'd <dD"9-Aa (12-18) 45 Porbob'd, D "PoP-<dd 244 Pobo"b'd, Acd' bPVM
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VI":A Vb bAC 2o P -APAM 48 PPN DCALS Dr

* Vb VP P-VLTA AA bVIPZT P->4b?
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© PPCDbor A bo>ATCLAMN VLS o°C CAPTACGLE AA DPCPD bor Ao < [AMNKo

* ol dCP7 d2379-Aa.
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Ste Marie.
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STAFFING SUMMARY 2022 - 2023
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NISHNAWBE ASKI LEGAL SERVICES CORPORATION
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INDEPENDENT FIRST NATIONS ALLIANCE SHIBOGAMA FIRST NATIONS COUNCIL | MUSHKEGOWUK TRIBAL COUNCIL

Kitchenuhmaykoosib Inninuwug First Nation
Muskrat dam First Nation

Pikangikum First Nation

Whitesand First Nation

Lac Seul First Nation

WINDIGO FIRST NATIONS

Bearskin Lake First Nation

Cat Lake First Nation
Koocheching First Nation
North Caribou Lake First Nation
Sachigo Lake First Nation
Slate Falls First Nation
Whitewater Lake First Nation

KEEWAYTINOOK OKIMAKANAK

= Deer Lake First Nation

= Fort Severn First Nation

= Keewaywin First Nation

= Macdowell Lake First Nation
= North Spirit Lake First Nation
= Poplar Hill First Nation

= Kasabonika Lake First Nation
= Kingfisher Lake First Nation
= Wapekeka First Nation

= Wawakapewin First Nation

= Wunnumin Lake First Nation

MATAWA FIRST NATIONS

= Aroland First Nation

= Constance Lake First Nation
= Eabametoong First Nation

= Ginoogaming First Nation

= Marten Falls First Nation

= Long Lake #58 First Nation
= Neskantaga First Nation

= Nibinamik First Nation

= Webequie First Nation

Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporations
Toll Free: 1-800-465-5581
(T) 807- 622-1413

807-622-3024
nanlegal.on.ca

(F)

WWWw.

= Attawapiskat First Nation

= Chapleau Cree First Nation

= fort Albany First Nation

= Kashechewan First Nation

= Missanabie Cree First Nation
= Moose Cree First Nation

= Taykwa Tagamou First Nation

WABUN TRIBAL COUNCIL

Brunswick House First Nation
Chapleau Ojibwe First Nation
Matachewan First Nation
Mattagami First Nation
Flying Post First Nation
Beaverhouse First Nation
Wahgoshig First Nation

(Bands not affiliated
INDEPENDENT BANDS with any Tribal Council)

= Mishkeegogamang Ojibway Nation

= Mocreebec Eeyoud Council

= Sandy Lake First Nation

= Weenusk First Nation
(Peawanuck)
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9ASPN>> A-PQ9°CL":

L>¢ LZ/a"A9A-bl:

138B Mission Road,
Fort William First Nation, ON, P7J 1K7
LrPD2: 1- 800- 465- 5581

L/a"A9A-bld\?:

C°C V L/a"A9A-bI:

(DY LPa"A9A-bIY  <-U<bA-ACS 1, 2023)

101 Syndicate Avenue North, Thunder Bay,
ON, P7C 3V4

LerD>: (807) 622- 1413

bA-> bN<"<>: 1- 800- 465- 5581

<\ (807) 622- 3024

bASCA-/Y L/a"AQA bl

doPA-PSbN-<A-SboPSbY, 9:00a0m — 5:00pm EST

d:0ad-b® LZ/a"A9A bl :

56 Front Street,

Sioux Lookout, ON P8T 1A3
LerD>: (807) 737-798I

bA-> bN<"<>: 1-800-465- 5581
<\ (807) 737-7297

Nr2® L7Za"A9qA-blM™:

119 Pine Street South-Suite 210,
Timmins, ON P4N 2K3

LerD>: (705) 268-1105

<*»: (705) 268-0012

9%a-*q LZ/a"A9A-blMN:
308 Second Street South, Suite 14,
Kenora, ON, PON 1G4
DCPPoo>V->: MNP LLP

bablMDd-~ b>PLA" voa?
bDLPZa"Abo S~ [YV: DCPLrQ®

2022- 2023 C/%"P N<PJA-> NALSC
© 2023 dofaV 4P N<o9A: A-LAV-A-a?
L'PCLAA

bPb->Pa: dofaV <P N<do9A: A-LAV-Aa?
LIPCLAA

bPDJSDO & bPLZaQUAD™:

"> INGAGED

PNoCL®

ocaadlLla® DNoCLAN:
AooldA2: LEA" A=]°?
AcolA: Madelaine Kioke
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NISHNAWBE ASKI LEGAL
SERVICES CORPORATION
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ON EVERY CHILD MATTERS M40
NISHNAWBE ASKI LEGAL SERVICES CORPORATION SUPPORTS AND RESOURCES

Argyle Community Support Program (For Indian Day Schools only)

24-hour Residential School Crises Line

NAN Hope

Hope for Wellness Help Line

Talk 4 Healing: Talk, Text, Chat

Native Women’s Association of Canada MMIW Crisis Line

Indian Residential Schools Survivors and Family

NISHANAWBE ASKI NATION TRIBAL COUNCILS:

1. Independent First Nations Alliance ° 2. Keewaytinook Okimakanak Council * 3. Matawa First Nations * 4. Mushkegowuk Council
5. Shibogama First Nations Council * 6. Wabun Tribal Council * 7. Windigo First Nations Council * 8. Independent Bands




9d7o° dod'aV 4P Dado9A-
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Vb: TPP°APC 1, 1990, doSfaV 4P N<do9A-> A-MMAV-A-a? DPCLAA PLPMBUL? M<obUP?
>adoq® oChAQ® DDL PV dofaV d°P bASCb (NAN); Ma M<obU b PDCb.od:"
DadoA:ct A DDL dofaV d47P.dda’ 1990, NALSC AIM9A-> N MYC'A PLULL? Ta
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AIPQA->Dal9A Ta bDSTbUP? AIM9A:a® oboSLb> NALSC AIMQA-?, Vb: Na — aab
ASAM"AV-Lb? Dado9A:a . Vb NALSC AIM9A-> DPUAaa?.

AfalA-?

PPo°rbUN Ma MaA G-V-C'"AobU Dado9A NAKCY dofaVA: DafV-Ae® Mo ALNZAS.

<d\2r9A-?

b->" bDalbUP?> CS9A> NKIo9A: AIM9A-a® Ma MMbod bCPP? AM'AV-A-
D>ado9A-a” Db> N<dodA-?, A>TCLAAY, P'PO"ALAA Ta Dadc9A: A-M"AV-AQ?
blabod:~ JA>Y DDL dofaV °P.

JrqaA-?

MF<PNobUP?> AIMAA-a® Fa A-M"AV-A-e? doSaVA: DOM9Ac Ma MbaL-<rbUP>
OM9A-a?, AIM9A-?, dofaVA: ALNAA@? DDL dodfaV 7P CS9A.

PONM9A-caa?® & POClAcaa?

«  APADA?, DPL° AJCLAA> Vb- AJPAA- + N\PIAV-A- [a SV-M9A-
+ PPoMAA° o PNoo A - PCV-CIA?
- ToM9A Mo b ASPIA- .+ uvea

+ T9A” Fa A-CoPMDA?
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o APVAV-AS?




bL/aPUN DDV: A-FA-DA-?

Vb dofaV 4" N<do9A-> AM"AV-A-a® DLLA: oo dod'aV? Dr9A-a” AAL
dofaVA: CL9A0 Mo <"Ag V-INdS° DOM9A-a. Vb bPDSA' 247° bPbIM
VI:<C"AV-" do? bASab® N<KJo9A> e MCACA-N D<:b? bad/". Vb DL b
Vo/CAa<d'bo™ CAYd™ ADCa® VPPr0°CdY~ Mo VI9Lb® o/DCLA- Dol aab
<dA-ZN D, Vb D<:b> CACA-N LNb-?, CAYd™ V:Yb~ bPASCL doSfa V. Vb 9:9-PU
AAL LNb:g™ V' Thra® db-A/ DDL D<-bo™. Vb: DDL 9-9-PU LNbo <<
VJIb4™ Vb Mo LbUL: 9-PZ"AN Vb DDV: AU IYd” Dol dA-> PLLA-
o/DCI< NKPAA2, Vb AAL "\ LNbso™ T"b: bASCA-Y/, VLLA aDlNMNaod-
Aa-U. Vb: ¢"?? 9da”: D<:b? LNb-?, Vb: Ibra® AAL ASfab-0?> bASPob-ara"AbUM
- bPob:a\ ALNAA Ta bLPYY @2C bAY-NY. Vb 1V- oA+ 9da” DDL bLZaPUP>,
Vb D>9:0d-> 9da> CAYd™ VA-rALb" 0<d:4" bASAINaod-. Vb DDV: bAa-UN aaA
A-rbU? PQ0d? oA bbaCP? AarardA-a” ["b:, DA, <4< Vb LbU<-.
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Vb: LL° VAa©°® C/4-* bAIMV:-Ac9d:~ e b>ACLK:<-" D904
AIr9A-blrd®> BPBL dosaV d4°P. Vb: D9-od-* DCACLA AaPP/d
VA-CLA4-, PPIA5>Y AACLA4 d<0Y/a'"\°/obA'do®, Vb dofaV 4P
DPLAbId* b4 DPY b>ACLA” Ma bbad:<C* N<Jo9A-?, Vb: b4 V'q
>'bN" DPL Pr\ dodaV 4°P DUbNP° AACLAA:c>.



>Qq-0cd-> DCACLA 2022- 2023

boba ACH: recveEn
NAaV: dofaV® AIM9A-bIMd>
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<:<> AIr9A-blrd®
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DCACLAQ: Cc QNP
L'Pb-bL> CS9A-0®
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boba ACY DN IA-?

re vEn

do?, >, 4-r4!

Vb- DDV- bobaACL®> dofaV <°P N<do9A- A-LAV-A-> L'""CLAA> (NALSC), L4~ ¢10°C° baadlCL<db-
Dol dodfaV 4P DCACLA Ta doPaba’ DDL AIM9A-g™. Vb DDBV: bPL'PLY, AIMQA2 IV
VASAT dobCP> Dado9A: AIM9AQ? Vd™ b'>" PALZbod” dAZY, Ta TSaNP? ALAV-AR? Ta b
FAIPLUN Dadao9A-. Vb ba/CAal® bPM0°Cb-* VLb-N AZIMADA Mo A:CoPDA DPL oAlr9A-cal
Fa dodaV 4P CS9A?, LI™ oNPIOI? b7 Dado9A- FASSY b<PNobU DDL dofaV 7PN

Vb: DDV: bP"P L™ PPPDCTS DDV- AIM9A-? CAYd™ bPL-V:albod: MVd™ b7 MAMCod- DDL
dodfaV 4 e b'>" dA5 MALZbod". Ta b'> doPA-> Vb b A:CoPIDAa® MNCb-P> bPa bC/P?
DDL AIrQA-ot, DUP LPMAA- PLAKKC? 9AaoPLbY A-FAV-A-c™. Vb: AIMAA LK~ bdolT oY, olo>Cl?
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J*A° *AM*VU® B.A.,, LL.B.

do> >0 d-r4

Vb bPSIP<IN L~ PPSYbLL>. Vb Mo oPIC> CAYd™ L~ MUCU'A PA- 9da> POFbUP> MUd-
PPLPBUN <dWCd A DL dofaV <P N<dodA: ALAV-A> L'PCLAAGY, bASTbUN o2 *AdS,
bPLPDC<> o2 DPLba Mo PPIKILY,
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*Ad* A-P"AV-A-> bPadCld:™ *Ad* V/ D2U*A</a? *Ad* LFa"A9A-> Fa A-CLAA-; Vb:
P<'"A9A-e?, NKPMPA-@?, bo><~ b~ bCdabo<-, Na dCP>> 9da> (ALNAA- PTo\Y). Vb Ma
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bD>0°CId:" bPa VANASP? AUM9A-a® Fa VANPSK:~ doPaba’.
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AJr9A- o AIrACLAr?, *Ad* V/, dofPab? DCHICLY, P*AD o CLAA? Vb doSfaV NPIAV-A-> Dr9A-2,
aablMM9A2 & CS9A: NPPMAV-A? & oA A-TAV-A- AIMQA-@?. Vbe DDV AIM9A- o~ VIS0 CP
dofPaba’ DDPL a? *Ad® A-[AV-A-a?. Vb DDV: bAIMA>" Ta blMA->Y ALAV-A-@® DDL TPV dofaV 4P,
Tb= Ad oAl<d:V:adla? b7 T ALAV-A-a® DDL TPV: dofaV 7P,

Vb: *Ad® A-MAV:-A-a® AIFA> AIV: Ad VASAT <4-V:al9” A dA7 19 ddAA b6l Mo Ad aab
bPOCV-Lb® DDL YV: dodaV 4°P. Vb: doPaba® DL MPV: doPCLAAc AV VASAI <oPCLAK™ b~
b4 JddAA> bPCb- AI'V: Ad VASAT 0o CL<CIQ" o2 9ASLLed AA? DDV- ddAA bLZVbLY. Vb-
DCa® bPQ"PLY, PPACI? L VLZPYY CAYd™ ASNAQ?, Db b4 VZINP? JILMIba?, Db’ b4 AlNAQ® Ta
DAICSS Vb- L4~ AA? DDV: <raLb? Ta PadodA:a® bDrbUP? CS9A?. Vb TNo <aNd? oAIr9A-caa?
Jb> *Ad®* lNa Dado9A: ATAV:A@? Ta Ad Dot bA:CoPLZb: DI, Vb A DDBV- bLMAINCLY, AV Ad
QASATA-CoPT V-5 PdobCLY Ara” MAXP? JILKFM9A: A-FAV-Aa?. Vb DDV: b~ bPa o *Ad*
LPa"A9A-bld?> CA-Y0° Nd~ LYPPA: <dWCM9A:a® b4 PZA~ I<Co? PMAcKN"AbUP?, Vb: bPa 9b” N<a V-
<<IDA: ATAV:-A-a? PLIMTbUL-.,

Vb LK~ AdoTh, DDV: DCat bAZ'P]N V- Ad QASATYbLbY b~ DDV- bPA-Ta M9 dd A2 bCh- DI,
Vb: V'Y gAeadlt dofaV DDL TPV: dodaV 4P b5 bA"AJY Ta bo?DCUL~ CAYd™ DDV b~
bArdol\ Vb Mo oAraadl® DobaCLAY AAL CJ9Aa” bCbP> CAYd™ bASAIoPCLA" AAL
DCSAA 0 TR~ DDV: dolNA2 bPChb- DPCa® MNa Ad bATK>A"bd>" 0d® bPSbY. Vb e oAaadl®
D>A:od- bPa dofaV 4P *Ad* doPaba’ LK~ bPMAoPCLAC™ e bAF<PNoNAL DCoPCLAAc]-™ DI,
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Vb *Ad* doPaba’ du” PLDoP<c" LZa"A9A'bl'd* 2022 Vb-
drv: dA? CSo MdoPd:- LPZa"A9AblNd® o''Aca® 2023,

Vb: PV:NoA: Pado9A:a® du” dA> PLIMbU 0> CS9A-?.
Vb: A¥ba Pado9A-? PZA~ AQ-AN dI<C? bA-> VC "Pb-bL>*
Vb: AbMbS. CS9A-> *Ad*® doPaba®, PCHICLA M
Pado9A:co ATAV:]d* AQ'AJA: Pado9Ac® la AV: And-
DadoqA-bld®. P>¢ dA->* Ad-Ad* bASPNL o°C 9rV:
PAnd:~ dL*4 Dadab.od:--. CS9A-> *Ad*® doPaba ATAV-A-
b1'PoA"AbUP> V<2, Na bd<FrbUP> V<o? lNa blb-cd-*
DDL AIr9A- AIr9A-a? Vb MPSMbUP? V<o CAYd~ blab.o-
*Ad® AIr9A-,

Vb: bad:<C> *Ad* V/ Fa wo>A: ANQNA: <d\VM9A-a?
bAaUP> DPL Ad-Ad*® www.legalaid.on.ca

PV:No Padoc9A-> A/JLPa"Ab? Fa A>ba Ad:AdA: Pado9A-?
L/a"AbUd-> DPL NALSC Ad-Ad*® www.nanlegal.on.ca.
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NAN AO48 CERTIFICATE BREAKDOWN APRIL 2022-MARCH 2023

B Criminal

[ Family and CYFSA

B civil

doPab® DC>ICLY AIL9A->:
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Vb doPab® DCHTCLAY d5< PFad~ o2 dA>> N<KPIA2 doPAPSbY, IACKS, Vb: <3-fboPsbd 1:00
p.m. to 5:00 pm. Vb DCHTCLA P>aD<- DadodA: ATAV-A-a> oAl bCb-P> CLA2, Fa I'A Cb
FPV- *Ad* PIPO'<ILAA-,

Fev. *Ad* P"Po"dLAA-> N<PIA-> - LED* ob'P

*  bPANGbU" LP’M9A> o DCLA — CS9A2 A-CLAA DM9A:e? Db bJ<C* LPa"Abo' e NKFICV-A-.
AYb>" NLKPIA2 do” P<PNobUN J=1”APC 2023..

. DOJ/JPIP - *Ad* V’/ la bA-FMbUP> bLMbad-<MbUP> CSAA-e>. PNKMlac<d-> AAL ob°\b"Abo™ Vb- C°C V.

. bd>T>bod:" CS9A >, MNa bASadlbUN FKPCA: NKMlaod CS9A?, Vb bD>albUP? bPA-Cod-®
CJS9A-e?.

. bN<1CAbod" aab Ada® <oPA: DCZICLAY Mo AIM9A-bId>.

. bA:CoPLbo<:" aab AIM9A-bld>, bLLA: A:CoPLbo<-" AIM9A-bld> N bAnCL-bo~ AIMAA-> NALSC
aab JACL9A-c™.

. bA-LFbUN dod'aV NPr'AV-A-> AIMQA-> DL LIND°Mb> To>A P'Po"dLAA 0.

. b<PNabUP> MJA- LPa"Aba?, MNa A<:AdY, Vb aab JCP>> AI<Mba> bCb-P>.




PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Legal aid staff attended and participated in the following training sessions
from April 2022 - March 2023.

PPdoPA- LPPQA-> [a P"Po"dLAA->:

. ba A DJIO? PNKPIA? = bA-M>bo<:” bPLANKG Ta b>" MASN o ob2.

. CS9A-2 *Ad*® P'PO"ALAA — bA-MZbod:" JA>" Db *Ad* LMAQ® la
bba<:<MbU" Dadac9A: AIMr9A-?

. bPPA-LbUN PAD o CLAA: Dada9A-?

. 2Ad* V/ DAUPAS AAN PIPo"ILAA (po> A ANASA- P'PO"ILAA->, LASA

DOraA-> A-LAV-A-@®, aab bASab P'Po"ILAA-)
. DNPLIAV- DCACLAY baC: AIMQA- Ta A-LAV-TA-Q?

e SAM"AV:A- baC - bAYb-ALN/~ DC>a? DrbuUpP?

. b->Y A-CoPDA-

. baC PPDPLALI Ma bA'SN PMDadadA-bl™ PA-UA-a?
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P*dD aCL9A-

AJr9A-°
2022-2023

bN<, 1= L~ VNV-*/* - P2JD DPL

d:r4, >0 DPPL P*AD aCL9A- AIM9A-c™. Vb- 2022-2023 bP"PL-
Ld:" b PASS DDV- dodfaV d°P N<do9A- A-LAV-A-> L"MPCLAA-
(NALSC) P*dD AJr9A-c®. Vb: DDV- bd"Pd-Y, P*ID AIM9A-?
DPbad-<a® “P*dD Dado9A: DM9A-a>,” bAaUP> DDL 718.2(e)
Pado9A: LYa"Abo®.
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Vb- #5, bA: do Padabod:” [Vd™ Mb>TbUc® P*ID aCLAA: NKLIA-.

o MLZa"AbUP> AIM9A-> Ta ADCea® 9da bPA-LAV-SP> JA->Y bPDIMANANK:- DDL
LLoA: Padag9A-bl™ AIM9A-> Db> P*D NKMIA-LPa"A9A-> Vb: b4 dofaV
<dVWraA-e? NPA<KCP2.

0 Vb: e b'>Y ATAV-A? dofaV® baCV-2CILm. Vb P*D doPaba® MA1>"
dA->> PPSOo™ <dV°M9A:a” Db> DPDadodA:ad-> DI,

0 Mabod:~ P'Po"ALAA> P*D DLPZa"AQN e doPaba® PF<KoPA: LFM9A 0.

o P>LPbUP? A-PA-DA-a? dJCPSY bA-CoPLbo<~ (PadodA-bld®, SLbon®, AL'AV-A-,
DCYTCLAY, Vb Dado9A-00d-Y) Vb- NKMIA-a® M<KPNobUP>.

Vb: P30 DLZ"AQY AI'V: Ad VASAT b>Nald:" PAD o CLAA: NKFIA@? bDSCL:A:<" o Ca
Ndlo' CSAAe? bob<dZb:. Vb: b~ JdAA> bPCb-Y PZA™ b oPL/a"AAM. Vb 0DL/a"A9A a0’
DPb->MDad: Vb 69 DPLZa"dad: DDV- bJ"P]-N.




P*dD AJIr9A-> ASr9A-a? DPV- bd"Pd->,

Vb: bCb-P/"A/C 2022, A*Q">2 AP, PPD DLPQ"AQ Vb U*A Ad%, PMPD dofPab? PNLII
DDL AD:Ad “Vbr oLlMNo°lboa dn” VSb>": PV N0 obA"'<oY NKdo9A: LI-M"ADA, TS2
oo>a? b<PNad~ AIM9A:e” PAwd- Db PMDPLA: DadodA:co, D'bN" DPadocdA+ Mo Dado9A:
AJIr9A-,

Vb: P*ID doPaba’ 9A-ad PPNLMICL ]2 o CS9A® AL-AJ® b TPPAPYC 2022 DDV- “PQ2C°
P=AD PaCLdA'2?”, bPA-LbUN AL:Ad® Ta a? *Ad* LPa"Abo®. Mo AN’ <Pa9A:e? oPDC oJ?
A<:Ad?, @ DCIA- ALMMba>, Na A<:AdY. LL° 13 doPaba® P*ID AIM9A-o PALCA Ta
VPL-AL<L<~ dA->> Db aab PID

DM9A-a> Dr.

Vb- TPZAZS 2022 UPA Ad%, PPPEAD doPab® PNKP Ma VPA- A5TA-e DDL PEAD doPaba’/
A-PAV-A- doPaba® baC LIMADA-c™. Vb DBV DMAA-> AL-Ad™ PDIOMbU VPAL<bo "
N<dg9A: baC AIMAA Vb dofaV *Ad* ATAV-A-?.

Vb: P30 doPaba’ MNa doPab? PCHICLY Da PEAN P'Po"ALbod ACK: b bNoA-APC 2023,
Vb: DP'Po"ALA 1> NMN? bablD~ P*ID NKCIA- LPa"A9A-, Vb: P*ID NLKMlA® AL-AJY
L<-DobUd e LPa"AboN? bPI9:" PrPAD dofab? U*A Ad* Vb PMPAD DLZQ"AQY, AZQ75?
AP, Vb *Vo b*AU3,

Vb: P*ID AIMQA- “PC° P=D PaCLdA'2”” bP<PNa™ L:* VNV-*/?, DPL PD o CLAA-
AIPQAA2 Vb *Vo b*AUZ, PPDLPQ"A9 Dol N<do9A-cod-t ALAY bP]IKCY LILPSbaAPC
2022.

Vb: P*D doPaba’ bPa wo>A: doPaba® DPNLKMICLd> LILPSba Al 2022 DL PV-N2abA"'<?
D>2UZAR, PA-PPbUN bASALAV-LLY PED la PDSTBUP? ALADA@® blabod™ o dA->N



P*dD DL/a"A9Q* Vb: doPabal

P2dD doPCLIA cwro' doPaba®, dCb-A (6) PID DLFa"AQ" Vb- JC-/

P=1D doPabat:

rn2* doPA-bllN*- PV-N24-<?

PrPAD DLFa"A9, *Vo b*A°U®

P*ID DLFa"A9Q, abV: QoP, VU* TCCA-A> P*AD doPab?, 1A *DDAN

THUNDER BAY OFFICE- NORTH CENTRAL

P10 doPab? bobo™, U*A Ad*

P*ID doPab?, IFAMNUPAL JC

P*ID DLFa"A9Q, N VF AU~?P

P10 DLF"A9, L d<o

92a-*q doPA-bl*- PV-N>0bA"]?

PPP=AD DLP"AQ, A3J>> AP

P*ID doPab?, *AV* I*<o

F"d\b"Ab> QoPA-blY- PV-N>0bA"Q>

P10 DLFa"AQ, *V/EA P

P*dD doPab?, C*>> <7
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doJ'aVA-
NPRNST'DNAA?
P9°M"9A-° lNa
baV-°MqA° &
CJ9A-° NPMAV-A-°
Vb: aA AMMAV-A-°
AJr9A-a



2022 - 2023 STATISTICS
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B 2022 - 2023 Clients Assisted

PP o"ALAA-

Vb: DDV: TSo AP ddAA> bPChY, bV APC 2022 dA? <6 doPaba’ bPLI-DYb-" AAL C°C V Db?

A V- P'Po"dLAA > bPOrbUP? MNa doPaba® aab 9de® VPOCLbod:". Vb DDV: bPAldab®, D>9-<-*
doPaba’ ArV-PA0L-N DDL <oPA-bldY Vb aab 9da? blo’Cb:coP? VPOICI~ b/, Vb AN’ JoPabas,
Arbv- LK avCe ArV: VPAn:~ DA DDV PrAdAA> A 19 bP<-al9Lb®.

doPaba®

Vb 2022-2023 <P PLZPN Dol doPaba’ Dr. NPMMAV-A- doPab’ PLCoP'dbo AalL dlfaA- MALD-
DDV: AIMAA-2. Vb: doPaba’ b4 PLCNbod DDL AIM9A-0 . o2 doPA-a® CL:<2, VIS PV-N0bA'P
DDL oA A-M"AV-A- AIPAA-c®, Ta VSN PV-N0bA'PR DDV: NPRINKMAV-A-> aablM9A: AIMAA->.



A-PAV-A-> Ta P'Po"dL9A-> DF9A-Q?

Vb: AA° D30 bdo obU'LY dd/A* DadoA-a?, DDV: dofa VA NPMMAV-A Ta aabl9A-
AIPAA- (IBVSP) Vb- CJ9AA-> NPPYAV-A Ta e A <oPCL9A- (IBVSP) d<-81 Cbrood-> DPCLAA@?
CAYd™ ArV: 9ASTab.od" DAL'AV-Y Ta CS9A2 bA-CoPLbod ",

Vb: A’b: DATPLboAPS Vbe bLPS bLb-PP-ArS, IBVSP/CRR <oPaba® bN*A b-* Vb- JoPab> DCHICLA
Da PN oA DPMad? NKMIA@ VP NP SLbow> CAYd™ DDV- NPP'NKYAV:A+ aablM9A: AIM9A-2
Mo CSL9A-2 SPPUAV-A2 Vb aA AM"AV-A-2, Vbr Dol bPAQDCI" L" TVC'A 94> DPDror’DCad:
Mo VPbA-UKL~ 9de?, la

VPlrabod:~ aab o/DCIAa® Db AaPrAA-a® DI Vb Na <871 dodf9A e PAM9A o/DrbUL-?
Jb> V-INdSA: ASNA@? Vb do? bAS<a"Ad]™ dof'aVy V-INJSA: Pado9A-o®. bNZA% o Da
DP<PNaad: DBV: NPMMAV-A> VA AIMAA VPTad:~ SLboSA-AIM9A-> CAYd™ DDL DCoPA0d
bDCI-" NM* o096l

Vb- bLPY TPPAYS, A'AN b4 PbNdo<d-S AAL /o Vb- 10 <MUEA VP<PNad< IBVSP/CRR N<KFJA-> Vb-
bPNLPICL VI bA-CoPL" AAL EPR AIMAA-c™ 1* <MUEA bASChb-N. Vb JA? PAMS 9d2, bA-
dA? JAZN PPPIA0" DA CSL9A2 VPPLIAP? QoPA-bld® Tbm 9d? dA> VPPLSSY, Ta VPPALS A¥dU
DCa® bNAbN. Vb bPa 9da? bdr\P> AAL PV:NoA- ALNAA:c™ Vb: MTa dfaA" ATZA b>b-UY, V-
dA? bPDDMbUN Vb dA? dA-> VPAn:", Cbm dA? Fabbod". Vb:, AA? bCA-NY, PAN 1° PEA
CJ9A- LPa"A9AbINd?, 1P PEA LPPA- DPLA0Y, dofaV d°P SLboSA Vb <>/ LYa"A9A-bld?
VPra:-<d:- A<frba® Nn VPabV-y'Id: bQ:UA-a?. Vb: BDCa® bPSbY b DPIST>? JoPaba?
baablM9<-0Pc~ AAL J/o <"AN bDlo™ 1° PEA CS9A-0N.

Vb: b~ bAZ 1N TPZAPS, DDV: NKLIA PDalbU AAL Ab b dofaVA: CS9A0™. bNZA? Vb Da
QAnd- Ta VPPA-CI~ NPP'AV-A: oVA-? Ta VPL<KLL" dofPaba? Vb Na DPLLN>2 DAA
SLbow’. Vb NKLIA? PDalbUN MNdodUN aablM9A: AIM9A-.

Vb e dC* DPCLAA? DDV: ALAV-A Ta P"Po"ALAA- b~ boSAldab® TPZA/C V' bNZA Vb Da
bPD>a D" DDV- NKPIA-> CAYd™ IBVSP/CRR A<:AdY bPDIPNKPICbod" TS PV-No < 0d
Dado9A:cod-t. Vb DDV: bPDLSNY CAYd™ A¥ba Da bPIST"AD<? LK~ bAYAbo™
PP>ado9A-c0d-? . G. ML"<D? B9-0<d-> DUP LIMMAA@® DI Db SPMMAV-A- oVA-a® e AIM9A-. Vb-
Nd™ JACKbSY VC PNLMdeod?, Vb AMBV: LK ¢¥CS VPLIMbUY A-CoPMDA? D904+ Dado9A-bld?
Mo b<doPClbod- DDL Dado9A-c™ DI




Vb- TPV, LK b7 PLIN DDV- ALAV-A, Ta b7 VPASba<d<INaod-. Vb PPAdAA? LL:-
PLZPrALL> bASba<:<CLN DDV: ArV: A-TAV-A-> CAYd™ bPPALSY Vb A2 <2°9: AJAN bPIKCY. Vb

bPa dA-> DUV°C? AL-AN LKM"ADA? b><CY VIof9aLb®, Vb e Po/CA-al® DDV- APV- LI-MADA-?
N b<d:<MMaod: LKL~ VPLIoMaLb®. beo? VC A:NM9A-2 blabod™ dofaV 4P dAZ b]d><~ "A Do
b4 b->Y ALADA> VASNLLY Ta DIPCLAA@® VIb-od: AraV: bd>M"ADaod-.

dodaV SPJoV-A-> doPA- b3-MM9A- AIM9A-?

Vb: dofaV 4°P N<do9A+ A-PAV-Ae® L'MCLAA (NALSC) L~ b DCobC® MCh Dador9A, Ta
dofa VA ALAV-A2 PKALKCY Vb dofaVA: AIMAA Ta PANGAA MTabod” dofaV 4°° JA-> DDL
D>2U*AR. Vb vo>? bDIMTbod: PMD>adoqAc®, dofaV DadodA-> DDL AIM9A: PPDPLA-
D>adoo9A-ocob®y, Vb: NALSC DPLMD? bA-MAV:-A: AIM9A- Vb- DUP JoPA PDSIbU dofaV
NPPNL"AQA QoPA-, Vb LN AIM9A-bIdY ASCb. Vb: L>N7 AIMQA- DPLA- LK™ b'> DALD? Ta
DA-CoPL> NALSC bD> D" 9Ca 0P~ lNa MMabo™ P'PO"ALIA? DU-V: DUP dofaV SPJoV-A: doPab?.

Vb: D-V: doPab’ du” DPLLM>? Ta DPAL>> dA->> Aa9-APC 13, 2022 bAaPlo™. Vbr o¥Cc PVIY
LL® 36 dA->" Plabodt ALAV-A-a” Aa9:APC 13 oA~ LJLSPba AP 31,

Vb: Q4 bASN LK™ PDIT Lo dAZY — 128 LL° PA-MZbodN. Vb dA->" bAQ-UL MA-MAIL"
>0 doPaba® Db> bboad DCZICLA? Mo bd:-V:aUos® DNPM'AJo 2. Vb LL°, 68 \PJoV-A-
4-V-alfqA-a? PDSMbUL 0.

Vb: bAIMbUP? oCNA-@® Fa DIMCLAA-Q® DDL P<A-DbIdY Vb DDV: DUP QoPCLAA-? L~ Plol? Nd~
aCV-2Cb. Vb DDV: doPA-? b5 A:CoPIDAa® DM>STbUL 0> AAL ANbI P<A-DblId™ VI b4
DCST'AV-A- doPaba®, Na bA-NC-<-- doPaba®, baV-2M9A- doPaba®, Noco9A: doPaba®, Vb-
Dado9A: dofPaba’. MNa b P<KA-DbIdY b->" JA->> DA-CoPL? Db> DCHTCLY?, o AM"AV-A-?
AJIPQA-blrd?, Vb NPMMAV:-A: ba V->"9A-> AIM9A-a>.

Vb: DDV doPCLAA-> <dWCb+> PDNa W>¢9A>/ANAA> DDL P<A-DbIdY CO PUA> A bba-<-<L-
bdobd: dA>> DA ddba V-2M9A-?, d>bTPA?, To>A, Ta dCP>> Ada® bASSP? ANbIY. Vb A2

bA>NoY = P-¢ A bQ-UA-e® MPKPCA- DCP?, Ma <b> PASL<KL™ Vb Db> 9ASaDCd'bod-"/Ta ba-U-,
Mo bboabo~ PDOCAICLAL?, a NPM'AV-A: 4:V:al9A~?, Vb DI<IdAa bPD>aUcP?. Vb: Vb ol



DDV- bDrbUN — PUA> JA? b<PNabU ANbIM P<A-DblMd* MNAnd:", Vb e Vb dolL> LMPDA-? PIKCH

DN aab 9da” bASSP? ANLIY. Vb Mo VVbC b9:UA-a” Db SPM'AV-A-a” bA-> MPIrbUP> o°C
r<PNobUP>,

Vb: D-V- L>¢ doPab’ <dWCdY MAL>" bdobd:~ dA->> DDL d5T"ADA-¢ (LMDA-c®, blr9a--
A-PAA-@?, V<oA- doPA-a?) Db D9-0<d-> DDCHTCLAA0<>, DaCLI, AJdA-e®, <N9A-a>. Vb-
A-CLAA@? e P'"Po"dLY9Aa? b]<C? NPMAV-A- b<PNobU®.

Vb: >9-0<d+> aab 9da” bPDOrbUP?, Vb: LI~ PA-MAV:Lbo? PMoNd2, Fa PV-C baablMaCLLb.od "
NPPIAV-A: 4-V-a QA2 QAN

. bA-CoPLbo~ DCHTCLA (DCHTCLA Ma/DA-MMAV-)
. *Nd* AM'AV-A? V<o?
. IBVSP ANQA-a/r>T"ADA-?/b->PM9A->
. PP<PAA->/</AA> V<02
. ba V-2r9A: A-LAV-A-
Vb: I'S? A D<Cad: VI oNaoP? NPPIAV-A- 4:V:al9A e Pado9A:a-V'< b4 9da? b
VDalbUP? bMbUP>. Vb AN’ bA-T>bod" Vb bA-> DDV: faCV-2CIQ" TN
LLY 9da? MA-CLb.od" TYd™ MAJNe™ CAYd™ bAadab.od:~ DDL Dado9A-bld.
Vb: I'S2 A-LAV-A: LPa"Aba? PDLPN<0? *Ad* ATAV-Ac™ DV <oPab? bPlabo™.
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NPPAV-A-?
<1-V-af9qA-> AJMr9A-°
- Annual Report
2022- 2023

b<PNa®: <:o L C-20*
NPPAV-A-> AIr9A-? DAV-alq



Vb: F'od® dPCra? dA->" bPA-LKZY I<K-S71 1000 DDV- bPL"P]- 2022-2023 Nd~ AN/
P>0bU 0> Ma VPSP Mod™ 924. Vb AN/ Ta o<~ PoTh<d:0” bPaPUbUP? DA Vb UV®
0oz VPDIAZ" P>A" doPaba’ MA><". Vb C", o doPaba®, VI G:a-*d P<A-Dbld®
(3V>0*/ dV*) PCaoP Vb: dC* doPab®/D><V-alq (Ko L C20%) dCP>> P<KA-DbIJ> DDL
D>2U*A< Vb C°C V b4 bCb-oo® P<A-DbldY, L2N7 A-FAV-A-bldY, PV-No ALAV-A-bldY,

(Vo CPUe2) D420 <ot T25C° A9 ALAV-AbIdY, a-3/V” P<ADbId Ma NVEA PA-CbId®
b4 PCaoPCLA. Vb: e oPaP>la’ DCHICLYY CAYY™ A<-S71 covn' LL° do” VCP". Vb T
>0 DUbN/A- A-LAV-AbId?> dn” e AYAND-0> CAYd™ VPolbUN DDV: bDCLN. Vb Dot
dA-Z bAM'AZZb dw” LL° o"\: AYA"bLb> <JA? 2020 b<"Pd- bPLIMMbUPL?,

Vb AN’ dA-> ASoN'Abodr <P9AblMdY, Fa PP<KPAA-bITdY, Ta '"PA: </9A-bId™ V'
D>ado9A-bld?> bAcdd:™ MAn<:" e NAaV: A-AV-Aa® FILKIPD" PV, Vb APDN LK bt
VASND™ bAY%: <Nbod Y™ MdZbTNo bPV--",

Vb: Mo dC doPab? oPoP'Ar? Vb AAL CASbVS C°C V CA:c Fa DDV: <oPA-
DNSablfD?, Vb DDV bo'?> b<doP>" bl wbTAldab® b4 ab>0oPl? Mo <PNALY. Vb PZA- VI
doPab?, CA-"AV:S Vb LL° oA+ doPaba CI>dY, L™ VaCV2Ch Mo o<dhodl? PZA"
oo F<PNabo™ [Vd™ TVC'"A MA-FAV-SNVb: VSd bATAACLA” C°C V Vb oS- 92a*d. Vb
Tbm 0CobCl™ PZA~ VI Mo"Pd>Y AAL C°C V CA-o™. Vb don” b4 9b” DCL? ob><l> NM"
DAC A2 LKm VAYANS C AP"AV-Ae? b]ALKMDZY Vb o< CMoN DATAA Ta DCL? 1545,
Vb CV bA<I>>" o'\ PAYAN Db bNK-LLZY DAAA Ta b<l-V-C'"Aa>" DC<LaY, Vb
obLalrar>. Vb: b4 L4~ b->" 9da® oA-CLJI DDV- bDCLY V'Y DC b4 DUbN/A-
APAV-AbId° bAMDZP? Ta b> FASNT" dAZ bPV-C<La>" bASCL".Vb: Dol bA-CLIZ
P<A-Dbld?> Fa DCHICLAN Vb b4 CAPSb gaadldl? DBL bAnS?,

b’ Ad LLY, Ta bA-r><d" BP0 dA>? bP<PNolLboo™ Nd™ dZbTPA? b4 I<C°. Vb lNa
DA-:Cad: DDV- AIMQA2 LK™ VaCV2Cb b'>Y V-ALAV-LLY. LK™ Ta b>" obQ-DCI MboCLP?
9da? V'] b4 bA-CoPL>" DCHICLAY Db aab 9da? bAS<obCld" AAL Pado9A-bldN. Vb-
Dado9A-blNd? bPARCIL" o bbad:<CY ATZA? AIAA? DDL dA>Y bDIAL>bod" Ta S
DAQod- dAZY A<” <PNabodt AA? Dado9A-bld® bPARCIL™ b DCHbTPA: DATZA 0

VCb-ogo®.
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LMar9A-° Dado9A-?
- C/P"P N<KrAA»°
2022-2023

b<PNa’:
nUs* L-°N2
LMa-rf9A-> N<do9A-> DPL

Vb: DDV: PP<d/A> PANGAA boCA-\Y, LMaM9A Dada9A-?
AIPQA-> D 10°C° VA-CY D9:0d-?> CS9A-° PA-UA-?, Aa"
AP'AV-A-@?, Ta aab DUbNFA: DMA-a” dn” PLMY-0°. Nd™ PHA-
Qda® cgaP'bla® Db> <JA? DDV- ddAA bdoAb: Cb-Y, Vb Mo
gaadlla® cCoPaboaa’ b>" bAID:~ e bloNe b-o
AL'AV-A-@? blMad~ P04 dodaV 4P CSL9Aa” BDDV- bJ"PL-N
Vb: LS, bd:<Cad- D>9-agd-> AN’ 9da? b'>" bPOCLP?> DDV
2022-2023 "PA-AIM9A-2.



Vb: DYbNZA: PANGAA: AIMAA AI'V- Ad bASAT Ta™ 9da? DUbNN? DDL AIM9A-c™ K'A b4
<d:‘Ado DPLILMad: Tb-~ DC UV® dA? baCV-2Cb+P> 9da>. Vb: b4 Prddr/A-> PANGAA-?
bPD>albUP? o>C DPSbdad: DUbNAY, Nd7, D90l 0CoPaboaa® b'>" 9da” DPP>adad: Vd”
b7 VPIra:-<d:= PANGAA: A-M"AV-A-a®> AAL CS9Aa” bASCbooP?. Vb AL-AY bA<Ct
PI1C-0<?, aab POrbU, MNa LbU"L? J0"A9A:a” POMbUL-0°, Vb DDL IYV: CS9A?
bASCbP> bPCSOrbU™ Vb- LK™ b POMALbo>.

Vb D9:g<d-> AN’ ArV- Dr9A-a” bPIOMbUP? Db o\APSb <<KLPIYA VI bPOCY AAZ 21430,
bl DYbNPA: N<do9A: doPab?, Vb PM'K>> [a DPPoYPI> DPA-MAJ> Vb- LL° NdA DUbNNY
PA-LCK-N Vb Ta, Tbm bPLA<Kb.od:" bLMY 2022, bold? dofood Padlbod FAn--
C°C V LPaU'r9Ablrd® Vo: D9:od- bPPaClLdbod:" bPLIM<"Ab.od:" e PFA/A: DalM9AQ?
VPAra\"AbUP?. Vb: D'bNFA: A-MMAV-A-> bobo'b®, AYCED>> P-PY, 9A-> Qdoo DPDOC CAYd-
ALNAA- A-P'AV-A V'SP VZALDA: CS9A2 bPOCL™ Vb L™ T2 DPI0°Cad: DDV
bPDCI. Vb DUbNPA- DPANGA oPaba VEC P> (0b°hb'Ab>), PEI-A-> UD* (AbMbS),
Vb- PV->¢ DP* (FTbAA- AIPAA->, AXALDY) V- Ad bASAT LICV-'A<" Fa aeb VPASbC-<--
D>'bNN? AAL DCS9A-0<d Aa” b> DN FASN AAL DCS9A-a -

Vb 0Dada9A: AIMAA-> (VEa? L3247, V<PM=A TP, L-*N° dPV->Y) PbPA-U- CS9A-e>, Vb- b4
Ib bPAN~ PNLLILN b4 DPL CSL9A e bChrooP? Db Q-A-4bL®, d:Ldal™ Vb- MPb-bL>™.
Vb F'a b'>" DA-CoPLL> NAPS, OPP, Vb: DPLb> N Do V-Acod-> CAYd™ VA-LC---
baDClLod LMaMr9A> N<Kdo9A-? b>" PKALKIIbUP? DadodA: LLoA@?® Fa b PA-CoPLbod
'd= b->" MA-FFoUP> CSAA? PUA° D90 DadodA-a? JI<CP>,

Vb: ASb-"DCV-A- LLoA> Ta TbAA: LLoA-> (SADV) AIF9A-> D1o°Cad: DUP doPba? bd-<-d-~
L-=N (L-=N) SbUP DDL Ab b bDM~ Mo b'>" b<oPCLA™ Vb b4 bAcV-CLA™ CSAA-0 . Vb-
<EFda DCK: 2AN"D? V- Ad 9A2 ASATAM'AV-" DDL bPa dofaV 4P CS9A e bCbooP?
Vb: b4 VA-M'"AV-" DDL N<do9A: bol9A: AIMAA-o™. Vb JbY/APC

2022, bPa doPaba’ P'Po"dLI:bod* Plabod- AAL a”dPE] L= DDV: DI b><CY LlMa M9A-
D>adodA Db? PITbAAc™ Fa ASb:MDCV-Ag. Vb Do P'Po"ALAA 0 C"A?
Pba<:<MbUd: 0> 9ILKMD<" Mo 9AMAJC" D3-od- doPaba™.

Vb: bPa <oPab? P'Po"ALAA Plabod-t Db> CSAA2 PIM9A-> Ma AALID" C"AN b4 AL-Ado
rvd= BBL PPrdoPClbod:y, Ta bA:CoPld>" AIM9A-2, PAn C°C V VPA-MAV-~ DDV




P'Po"ALAA->. Vb DDV: P'Po"dLAA dn” b4 CSLAA-0™ PLITBU, V'A AIMGA> doPaba’ Mo
DCACLA VPAn Ab Mbc VPA-MMAV-<-~ Q"A bP<PNobU" PITbAA LMDOCV-Aa? bCb-P?
A'doA-bld. Vb oP10>Cl bPA-MAIZ DIV, Ua LEN2.

Vb: LlMNaM9A-> Dado9A> AIM9A-? Ta M2 DUPAde’ PPL<Ca? DDV: DPCa® oNwn'A’? 9da? b4
bPUAcbUP> C"A bPLIIbUN Ma bPLPa"AbUN bAS'<IVWCbr C°C V PMP>ado9A oo DLPQ"A9AbIM
FA-P"AV-" Ta Aa” dA-ZY APNASK- R) AIF9A-g™ Tom DDV bATDalbUN

Vb DDV: dA” bPCb-Y, LMNa M9A: Dado9A> Mo DUbNPA: Dado9A: AIM9A-> D<Ca? VAYANP? V<02
JAMA-> BCa® bPPbY 2022 b dA’ bPLVIMALbY DDL AIMAA-c™ DI, Vbr 9° Nbo, *A"'<P VEL,
PEACNVE VEN, LEA PPN, T3 L"D?, 3A*A V2N%/, 20752 NbP!, TPA AYVANE, Vb <FAPLY LN AV
Ad bPa 9da? V&<MD< Aa” A% bA>bod:™ b'>" AM"AV-Ae? MTabod:~ b~ DDV-
bArdel\N. Vb LM M9A: DPado9A AIFAA-2 LK~ b DPUAQ® voza” DDL [PV d5bTPA baC
bPD>Na~ Na PZA" oA LMNaM9A: DPado9A: doPaba? bPLo"d™ Vd™ b-> FdoPCLbod-N. Vb V-
Ad PZA~ QASAT A-P"AV-Z TUd™ PZA" doPaba’ MaP d7d>b: DDV do AP,

Vb A%b>", DBV AIM9A LKD" b'>Y PAIMALL? Ta bA-CoPL™ P90 dofaV 4P SLbw> bPLL®
LZa"<d1<:" <dVr9A: adlDA? 2022 bPLPNN. Vb L2 P-P" Vb- PEAN L*N? ATV b
VASATA-CoPLL:" D9-0d-> oPA-, OPP, Vb- C°C V SLbow> I'Vd”™ b->* FA-PPbUN Mo M<obUN DDV-
bAa<C* AIM9A-,

Vb: LMNaM9A- Dado9A-> AIMQA-> V- bASAT<oPCLYA™ 2022-2023, Ta bPa oCoPaboaat

MLCoPL:~ Cb-Poo® 2023 dAA° DDV: PrAdA A bP<-aM9LbP<L?.
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bPLMDCdbo-
<1:<9A-> doPCL9A-?
AJr9A-?

Annual Report
2022- 2023

b<PNa‘:
43 IIVIV!
bLFDOCd-bo~ d4-<9A-> DPL



VICTIM WITNESS STATISTICS 2022-2023

2 59 87

Vb 2022, bPLMOCLbod" 1-<9A? oPCLAA> AIMAA LK~ Ad PDPCIK Db aab ASNAR?

e PaAaablMbUP?> CAYd™ DA< aab ASNA-Q2.

7179-/L¥9% aablM9A-e® PIOMbU<Lo? bCb-PY 2022 Vb- LL® 23 UV M9A-e? PaDCI. Vb DL-V-
<oPab? LK~ PPM0°CdrY bPA-M'>" NV2M9A-a” LL° oA-Aldab.

Vb: Dado9A:e® AN’ PCANKD? CS9A e bASCbP? Vb Ld:™ doPaba® PPBCTA bAnd:
D>adoqA-bld> Vb Nd™ AN/ CS9Aa® Ad:Nda DPILMDad: DN PrAdPA2 A7 19
bPDLP<"Aba Y AAL CJS9A-0.

Vb- <-U<bA-A¢¢ 2022 AIM9A-> VWL DP<PNa’ P'Po"dLAA-> Db Dadac9A-> bASYY/Dadar9A-
bASab<:<Id<d" bLANK™, bPNKPIL" N3 L2, Q9VE ALS, 13 b-*"C2, N32A° UdL, M*A%> 107>
Vb: dCP>" DCLZM DPL LGBT2Q AIrQA-c™.

Vb: VWL D<-Valq & VWL DPL PANC- "I LIMAD A0 CAl) 2022

Vb ¢dC-/ VWL doPaba’ PAn- LIoo9A: P'Po"ALAA-c C-*4->D. Vb- doPaba’ aab 9ba?
PP o"ALLbod- 95-<MD-". Vb: bPa DPUAaad: V<02 LK~ Ad b'> Dol A-CoPlD4-N,

Vb: VWL AIF9A- PadLlbo PA-MMAV-" Do DUP 13 aA aablM9A:a. Vb: DDV: 94"P]
CAIDrbU-0°. Vb: PLKMADa o> TPAAY™ 6, 2023.

Vb- VWL DPL PNKC] AAL D%*<-2D VPodC PPLPNA? DDV DI ASb-MDCV-A+? aablMM9A-a>.
“bAM>bod” dofaVY bo>'bld:" PPASLMDOCV A

Vb: VWL <oPaba® AL-Ad® P'Po'ILAA> BIPDCad:. b'a> bPa doPaba’ PP>CAa <"
PIPOIALAA DRE VPPD>CMA-DL .

Vb ¢C><-I? VWL doPab?> DDL C°C V PadoA-bld* MAM>" dofaV 4P CS9A: dofood-?
Fa PAP'AV-" Dado9A:o. Vb AMa™ A-CLAA:e? CAYANS:0°.



° A.PqA.D

° A-PIIAV.A.D

- aCL9A~

-+ baV-r9A-

+ PAC> DLPDCIA

P9°Co> PaCLdA:Q?
bLFDCdbod-- PC»ad: L'bA-/A-a>:
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LLe A>T"ADA-?
AIF9A2 - CC/>'"P
N<rdA-> 2022-2023



Vb: bPob-aAacdt APV bPADIbUN aA~ AN’ VC POrbUL> BBV bPL'PL-N Nd™, AN/
dofa VY, AdM9A:e? Mo dAZY bA? PPDP<PNabod: ArV: MPobaAd:", Vb dobU. Vb: AN/
>Q-gd-> DUP AL'AV-A- AIMAAQ® do” TS DAMAJad o AdfdA caa” CAYd™ AAL dA-S
bASbVS". NKPIA? LUPIN AMMAV-A> AIMAA Plabod 11 DAL'"AV-A- doPaba®
bPLLMAZbod:" Vb PDoabo 9oboVb®. Vb PAPDac? MDSTOUN <dVM9A-.

Vb- AIMAA-bId® Ma A-L'"AV-A-bId> DAMAS-?
A>3, P9od? AM'AV-A-a® Tabod* NV3M9A-a?
Ob? baV:oLd:AAc®, Ta baV->M9A-cY, MNa
bD>CAab.od:~ d<-S'0’ dA? <b> bAS<N\bod-~ Db?
>-dLbod-?, Ma baA <dN\bod-- PNV2M9A-0d-Y, Ta
aab bASNKT, Ta LPALA-DA0Y, Ta SbADAR?,
LMNo°MbaAoA-@? Na <b? bbaV-oclLbod:~, Na
AJIP9A-> CAS baCLA. Vb: D04t doPaba’ b->"
DATA-CoPL> NV M9A-e?, AIM9A-a?, DPLA-bId?
Vb A-M"AV:-A-bld?> Db> VDala<d:-- e 9OrbUN.
Vb o P> DDV- bPL"PL Ta PMS
VPAYb-ALNY~ DDV- bP'P]-N. Vb DDV- bASNY,
L4~ bPa 9d° obq-DCI MA-L'ASS> NVAM9A-a2.
Vb: doPaba’ LK:= APD M<oPCLA- AAL
bASCaoPCLA ™. Vb e Dol doPaba®
DC5T><2 AIMPAA-bIrd?, dA->2, DPLA-bII?,
AP"AV-A-bl'd?> Vb NV2M9A-a® DDL A:Ad
LZa"A9A 0N, LPPDA0, PA-UA-c™ Vb 9da?

b<PCA: Nab.od~. Vb 9A:a - P9Q:cd-* doPaba’

aab 9da® PDOCad: Db? V<PNa I~ NKrIAe?, A-CLAA-ASMAA?, P"Po"<dLAA >, Vb:
PPP"Po"ALAA > TYd™ b>" MDSCLAC" <oPCLAA: AMMAV:A@? Mo A-CLAA-V<0?; D'bNFA-
oboCLAA LI M"ADA APb> dfaVY AN *AVE, bLAM"ALZb: JA-ZY 1M <MUEA, b2CPN\b"Ab?
A-L'AV-A-AIPQA, 20 CPZ"P PV-NO? b3d" <2, ALY Ta NV2M9A-> L-M"ADA 2022,
A<V Ta NVAP9A-> LG-PMADA, Pobl N LUPPA- oPA- -<C"AV-A->, NAN/NAPS/NALSC
LL-L'ADA2, NI LAM'ADAR, b2 b*d” LIMADA? dofaVA: AM'"AV-A, Vb <Y PPASNA-
bol9A-a> Vb CSAA2 JoPCLAA LK~ AP"AV-A-Lb> PPTaNP? AM'AV-A- V<0° Ta b'>
A-CoPI DA,



Vb: TTP ADR baV->"9A-> PNKIIbU Vb: bPobob® T*A A** Vb: TTP DPL DDL dofaV

498 Ta NVAPA2 AP'AV-Ae® AIMAMA-e? DPUPAS AM"AVA-? doPaba® Vb AL:AdY
PD>IPIPO"ALA. Vb:, TTP/o PV-A->-¢ PV-A-> P<odlbU A-d* DUbNNY 16+ VPNLLICb.od:"
DDL LKL-P"ADA0™. Vb: Ta ArV: NKPIA2 DP<PNe® 73N NUEP7 DDL NP AAL Po<NLo
CFS. Vb: 'a TTP-M|BH ADR N<KFJA-> POrbU DDL <oVE/N A2/N* Dado9A: P'Po"LAA-.
Vb: o ArV- HRIS P'Po"ALAA Plab.od-* bPa DPLY, Fa AIMAA-> VPLICIbUN. Vb Mo dCP>?
d<LPMba? Plabod DCoP. Vb Na PMdoPaba’ aab 9da® PP'Po"dL]bod- Db PLASNA-
AP"AV-Asa® Ta To>A: bQ-UA-a Dr9A-a?

Jb? b'> bAM>bod~ doPaba’. Vb Na dA>" b2C bDCLbod:~ PP'Po"dLbo<d> Vb bPa
TTP doPaba® 9A-ad: PA-LC:A-N Vb Ta DPL DDL PA-MAV: OFIFC V<o0? b<d<CooP> & lNa
A-LA-DAQ® Vb AL-AN PKIKC. Vb: Ta DPL PA-PC: DDL MCCSS o¥Cc 1 b P'Po"<LIAA-?
Jb> BUYbN" bP<:oDCA-V:~ MAL>bod:". DPL Vb: doPaba® MNa PA-LC:N CAYd™
bbaV:oLbod:~ IS0 bLMFDCLbod:" ‘Vb: [PV CSLAA? <dWCb> FALC™ DL V-"NEQR
<oVE/N DAUZAR. Vb b4 doPaba® PALCAN NKMIA?, I-<C'"AV:A-a?, P"P0o"dLAA0” Vb-
PPrP"Po"dLAA . Vb: Ma A-AdY PDILLA-NKMdao<? Vb bPA-NC:m <>dC”0 CFS, A7
bLPDC'bo<-~ LI-M"ADA-> (NIF>7), TTP P'Po"ALAA-> (NI>"), ADR PIb> bA-Prbod~ dId-So,
DUbNNY & NV2rAA-a® A-P'AV-A2 (AQ-ADY) PPASNA A-P'AV-A-> & A-P'"AV-A- DMAA-
(8/VZA) b+ b=~/ NALSC <oPA- A-CLAA-@?, bPPA-Uacd DUbNZA- A-M'AV-A-bIY,
bLMOCbod~ AQ-<- o dr9A-?, LUNSA <<-° Vb N PVN? b-=d" <J-°. bPa DA-CLY®
QA-MMAV-<N Ta VPA-CoPLL" AIMAA-bld>, NV r9A-e?, Mo CS9A-Q?. LFPDAQ?,
A<:AdLPa"A9A-> Vb dCP>> PI<KCo? DPL PAAC PSb> oPaDCLT? PPDPL *-A- Vo7
bPA-C* /MN V/ T*A>? wora? b<PNabo~ DDL FASZ<N/- ‘LPMAA: DL AIM9A-c™ Db?
DUbNN\Y bAYb: baV-oLb.od:" MPA’CU:" ablA:a?, DM9A-e?, Vb: <oPA:a Vb: PLIMbUL?
o"PAYC 2023. doPA- DCZICLA Do P*"NA Vb: ¢° oAl D2U*AS DA-CL9 DCACLY
bP>JSbUN DDV- ADR A-CLAA-?: bba<'<MbUM ADR DMdA:a” AAAMD<:~ Pado9A-cod-®. Vb
TTP b4 DPArV-<:<LK> D>9-0d-> DCACLA? LK-MADA-c™ AAL C°C V CA:g™. Vb TTP L~
A-PC aab 9da?; Db? bA:CoPL" AIM9A-bId>, A2, DPLA: doPaba?, A "AV-A-bld> Vb-
NV>M9A-a” DDL LIMPDA0Y, PA:UAc™ Vb 9da blMad:". Vb dA’ 19 P>A" P<-al9Lb>. Nd~
Arv: Ad bASAT <oPCLA>" b~ bPP<JIPP> Ada” LMPD? MNa AL-AN oPLILMDle?.
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Vb DVbN" LMMAA-> JA->Y bLMDCAbod:" PANGIA-> AIM9A->- o PV-A-> AIM9A-> PLITBU

DCat bPL"PN Nd7, PZAT PASS JAZY MdoP'IZZb: MPSDOL DDV

AIPQA-2, Vb V'Y, DCHTIAV: 2Q-2A 2V N# [ JC* doPab? PEAN L*N? L]” Aad:
DPPMdobCad: DBV: AIM9A-> L~ Ad b>" PKoPCLAL bPL-4 CoP~ DDL NALSC
AIPAA-g>. Vb Dol of? DUP doPaba’ bPLoP'I> [Vd™ FPSOL" DBV AIMAA Ta Ad
VPL-AM"AdZ 9da. Vb PobaAAa” ArV: AnA- b4 PI<Co? Vb aA™ <P ALAN PLILCA.
P'Po"dLAA@” lNa CCAANdab POMbU 0> MNa Ad P"Po"dLAA'e> aab AIF9A-bld?> VPA-FC--~.

Mo LPa"Aba? Vb V<o0°> DDL AIM9A-0® PILKPIbUL Vb aA” b>" MAalfbU DUbNNY
bPA->bod". Vb: DPLA: doPaba’ DPA:Cad: Na VIV CIK™ dA>? dbMAYdobo bDro~

Fa bASbVS o™ PALCK". Vb AN/ dAZY bAMZbod:™ PALCA Mo PbI-ULL JCPF?
AP"AV-Asa® MTabo<d~ bPAYb: I"PDA"AAL". IS Vb NV2M9A> b4 YVHTPP- ¢ PV-A-
DA-M'AV-A- doPaba’ Pr9-<d- >3-od-> AL'AV-A-a® b~ DDBV- bAFDrbUN. Vb LK~ b 9da?
ASLSNG? DBL AIMQA-o®, Db DUbNPA- AP'AV-Ae?, Fa Ad b VPALC:od Aa” MAnd:-
bA-<Q-<Lb.o<-", Fa LMPDA-c Vb D><-V- doPab’ PA-CE PUA> baCV->CY A-P'AV-A->/aA"PAA-.
Vb, bPAb: doP"'dbod:" Mo bP P'Po"ALbod" doPaba Vb JA? bPL-CA-LMTbod-Y, 25
dofaVA- DUbNAY 12-29, NVAM9A-@® DPA-L><-> 38, Vb Chdbh (12-18) 45 Ch-bY, Vb-
PPD>YbNNY 244 CN-bY, Vb AM9A-Q” 23, PobaAA@? 34, NKCIM9A@? 10 Vb Mo dCP>>
doPAa® Tb” bAIfbod Tb-Aldab Vb blwbl1Aldab®. Vb oPA>CI> DDV- M|BH AIr9A->
b VASSN. Ta Ad bPPSMBUN DBV- LL° TTP/MJBH N<KPJA-@® Vb- bPNLILbUN DDV- MCCSS
AJIPAA-2 bPPA-MC- DPL N3 A*AY. Vb AIM9A-> MJBH DPPNa? <oPA-bldo DBL bASAIUN
PEAD AIMQAA- Vb- LK~ b>" doPab® PAMAV--N,

Vb: IPV:, dda™ J*I"APC oA~ TPYAYC 2023 oS Ca o' N DUbNNY Vb PPDYbNNY 12-29 o2
PobaAAa® POCIbod Vb 12 bA-> MPDIAw:". Vb bPDIOrbUN Vb bDbVeod:r,
b<\'bod:", bLIN©’MbaA0<:", oP"AJLA: A-M"AV-A-?, <:b"Ab>, e AIM9A->, MPV-<-7,
bLMDCAbo™ dA>, Vb AVdoA+ AM"AV-A. Vb 0wd™ PI°Cb+> LK~ I'S? 9da” ASNAQ?
VASNS™ B9od A oCoPaboaa’ bAM><" Ma Db PPASNAQ® Vb <PN 9ASPDOL
AP"AV-A2 o CV-2CIQ". Vb bPa 9b” D9:gd-> bPOrbUP? PNADIbUL 0> AM"AV-Ac™ DI, Vb
'A% b4 P]I<Co? LMPDA?, AL:Ad LPa"A9A, NKM1A@?, I<C"AV:A:@? la aab [9:Aa. Vb-
Pob-aAA: P'Po"ALAA-> Ta AIF9A-> b4 POrbUL 0%, Vb bPa <oPaba’ b'>" Plabod-
AP"AV:-Asa?.




FoYA:- LbA-/A-a?

Vb: o'/ 9da? POrbUL-> DDL A-M"AV-A-o®, JoP'AV-A-c™ & P"Po"dLAA-c CAYd™ DCHTAV-

bPNLKMCP> aab 9da> Db> PITbAA: P'Po"ALAA-?, bA-M>bod:" doPabal, MNa b'>" MAL>"
dA-7? bA%: doPacd, Mo A<™ PobaAA-a® MrbUP. Vb Ma b AMMAV-A-> MASab <b?
AIPQA-bId®> bDIMTbod-Y, Db> DPDL bDM<PNobUP? dodaV 7P A-MAV-A-a” DPLA:c>.

dolMVA-a?

boCh™ o2, PHA- doPabae <dWCIY P-4, b PALSbod" A5 Vb bDLMPDo <~/
Vb bPASTH<~ dAZ2, Vb e 0o Vb UVe <b> bPa<N/-, Db> LMPDA-e?, <" NP’", TP/
bVJLA2, PLPASNA: A<PMba?, AT>A, Vb- AIPAA DaCV-ol® vobra®/d<MMba 9AN>4-"
dA-7? Ta bDMN<K"AbUP? NG 9A e Vb JA? 9da?® oldfadCla? MPALZ>Y JA->N PUPba.

aP'P9A:a® Na aabCd-<MqA-a?

Vb D<-V: doPab® Na DCHIMAV: b PO Dad ATADA«@® IVd™ b>" Mdobd-d~ dA->?,
Vb dA-Z do” PAeCV:gLd? FAMAID" Dol doPaba? MNa MAZb N Dol A
<A? DraA LRS-, Vb: PobraAAa® blabod: dAZY TYd b> PNKPI” Ta Mo drad:-
DNSNYAad DL Vb: Ta b'>Y oA-CLIIM? P90 PobaAA@?® VIo9ALbP?, [a bPA-rC-<-"
L VPro°CUd:™ bPa A% bLLAYb<:". Vb: [a b'>" cACobCla? CJS9A?, e VLLA:
A-CoPLZb: JA-ZN.

dCP>> A-M"AV:A- LIrr9A- N<Mrl1A:a?

Vb 4AHY DDV- APSG: LIN02Mb><AA0A2/5bADA R, bA2 PPDNa < AJFAA-Q> DAE Vb
boobabt, Vb ArbL VASeTS Vb UVe APIAV-A- DPCLAA'Q bCb-P? Db o> M-
<PAA>/bVEA>/aCNAa? baCV2ChP>, Vb DBV bC/<~ A DBL AJIPAA-c™ PaCV-Cdr
Ao~ doPab? bA%: doPacd Fa ATIAV-A-c.



Tb-- AJP9A->
J*d” 2021 oA--

>
yU
n
v
n
g
b
a
b

Pr<oPab?

L®- 2023
/.b i
v ! b . "
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=
30 ba<Cr 250 <A 28 eab
0 23 34 QV-a A 157 103 AIr9A-bIrd? A-P"AV-A-bld?
10 PA-UA-Q> bPA-NC-<--
154 4A-5
75 AJrAA-bld? 40
A aab
0 23 NA NA NA 26 PA-UA-a A-P"AV-A-blMd?
10 <dFA- PA-UA-a? bPA-LC--
21 b/9A-bld?
bA-UA-a?
0 23 34 30 157 649 68




dolMYA:-a’bd-<rbUP?

«  LMN9°Mb><dA0A-; bAUY IPUbU>CIA-

« NV’r9A-2® Vb bAn<~ PobraAA-a® a>C Vb bDCI- C/AMdab IV-al94-e? b~
ACW PA-UA- blabo~ <A

« Vb LM AP'AV-A-a® bCb-P?

- dA’ 19 PP<diA-

. Vb brUC'"Ab/<-- <A-> Ta bAMAV-<--

. Vb bCb-P> bVJSA-a.
TTC’s Vb boo>ob® PAM>bod~ A<-J'0" N>DCAabod-- DCCIbd-,

. Vb N A% b<d%>" MPaA boabo~

FoVA-a?

*  dAZ bATZbod" a bA-LC-<~ PDL MJBH-TTP AIM9A-c>.

*  AAF9A» bA-PC e b9~ ALAV-A-?.
baA Aod~ dAY/bboCld~ 9da?
PrdoPaba’ bA-TCd~ Ma bPCIL/P'A?> DCol oo ld ALAV-c~ DDL db-M
AIr9A-e? db-rA¥dob bCbooP>.

* Dlola bCA™ PobaAA-.

c  dAZ bba-UL" dCP>° AIM9Aa® MNa ATAV-A-Q?.

+ CAS AIMP9A- <4"A b4 MJBH A-MAV:-A- bCb-> A-[AV-A:a® <:V-af9A-.

*  N<do9A: doPab? bA-CLL" bN<dabo~ DD>V- M|BH A-AV-A->.

* dodaV 4P AIM9A-> A-LAV-A- V<o°.
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doP° AJM9A-
2022-2023
CC/Z"P N<KrlA-?

NISNAWBE-ASKI LEGAL SERVICES
CORPORATION (NALSC)

doP° AIM9A-> DPL: b=V’ SV-/°
HRIS/P"Po"ALAA- D-V-afq: T=dN\ 0>~

DCoP"AV: D>Q-V:alq: *AVZN b-3L>



STAFFING SUMMARY 2022 - 2022

116 LL® NALSC <oPaba® 6 DUP JoPA-a?

32 doPaba® (abV- doPabal) 5 d-LaA-" (STD) bPAr- A-LAV-A-
12 abV- doPaba® 2 Employees on Leave

3 doPaba® bPJCoPL- DL AIr9A-c? 0 WSIB doP° ANPSOA> aDCLAQ?
1 doPab? bPA'b-doP- 0 Resignations

JdoPA: NK"A9A:a?® Na A-AV-A:a?
&=

DUP AIP9A-> Dal9A-> (NOM):

Vb: bCb-P* 2022, NALSC DCACLSY, DPL® Ta doPaba® DPLMDad: BDDBV: DUPDBal9A+ bPOMbUN
DDL AIM9A-o™. Vb: DDV: DA+, Po/CA:cbU NALSC AIMAA- PDID™ Ma M<oPD~ DUP AIM9A-?
D>alf9A-> (NOM). Vb Tfod: PdodfbU, DUP AIM9A- Dal9A-> PDISLUN Ma VPMabod:~ DPLY Vb-
doPaba®. Vb: DDBV: bPLITBUY, PL<MbU DUP doPA-a? MNCb-P> MVd™ FALFBUN DUP AIMQA-2. Vb-
Tb~ Do DUP doPAa” oAldobCla’.

Vb: PLM<oPbMbU DDBV- AIM9A-> NOM bLISY 2023 Vb TTbem Ad b4 Al<oPblbU A7
M<doP'dbod: DUP <oPA-@? [Vd™ b->* FALMbUN AIMAA-. Vb AIMGA> NOM 'V don” MLCoPLbY
a9 DDV: bAI"P-Y,




N<"AQA-

Vb: bPa NALSC <oPA-a” b~ aabllbUd 0> Db> NK"AQA-> DI DDL YV- AIFQA-bId® Ma bAaUP?
doPA:@? Vb: DDV bPaablbUY NK"AGA> Mo bASabP? DA:gd-> NK"AGA @, AI'V: JA? aab
bdAr"bLbP> N<K"AQA-a® bPDSTbUP? Vb: bPa D0 V-'b~ doPA:a” bD>IMCb-P> DDL PASMBUL 02, C"A
VC bA DYP doPA:e? Vb: bPa D0 DP doPA-a” bDJSTUP? DBL NOM Tb-~ AldobC<-0° MVd~
FdoPLbod-N. Vb P'PO"ALAA? Ta Da VA <dVWr9Ae? b= ATDJSTbUL0° FAAD]D " doPaba® MNa
FALAV-ST DUP N<S'AQA-,

bAaU® NK"AQA-?
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DPLA: <dWM9A-a” bAaUP>.

[o>A- Ta d%b-TrPA-
&=

dA’ 19
P<"AQA:a> PCA:0bUd 0> 2022. Vb: DDV: b~ aab <oPA-> DMbU lMNod® <:U<KbA-A¢c 2023. Vb: I'S? o
CS9Ae? do” DP>0Dad: P<"A9AQ? Vb do” Mo <oPaba’ PLMbPA:Cad: A¥doba” VI9-<-~ P"Po"<LAAQ?
Fa A-M"AV-A-a?.

DYP doPA-bl™

Vb NALSC AJr9A-> b~ b <oPA-blMd> — L>*" bJ:b"Ab> — 101 Syndicate N Suite 101. Tb+~ <*U* I'ba®
bCb- 0CoPAblda? bA-> bPa Ada MPD>IMOCLP> CAYd” o AIMAA-ca® bAS<INV Chb-*.
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doPIAV-A-
&=

DUP doPA-
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We have made many updates to Vb: <dw” I'S? 9da> oP<-V-adla?
DDL AJr9A-o™ HRIS Ob> CS9A-> A-M9A-° blabo<d-~ <oPaba® MVd™
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D>al9A 9fa” MNdoP'd>b: DUP doPaba®, Na
MA-CoPL>b: doPaba® DDL AMNA-o™.
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Management's Responsibility

To the Board of Directors of Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation:

Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the accompanying financial statements, including responsibility
for significant accounting judgments and estimates in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations. This responsibility includes selecting appropriate accounting principles and methods, and making decisions affecting
the measurement of transactions in which objective judgment is required.

In discharging its responsibilities for the integrity and fairness of the financial statements, management designs and maintains the
necessary accounting systems and related internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are authorized, assets
are safeguarded and financial records are properly maintained to provide reliable information for the preparation of financial
statements.

The Board of Directors is composed entirely of Directors who are neither management nor employees of the Organization. The
Board is responsible for overseeing management in the performance of its financial reporting responsibilities, and for approving the
financial information included in the annual report. The Board fulfils these responsibilities by reviewing the financial information
prepared by management and discussing relevant matters with management and external auditors. The Board is also responsible
for recommending the appointment of the Organization's external auditors.

MNP LLP is appointed by the Board of Directors to audit the financial statements and report directly to them; their report follows.
The external auditors have full and free access to, and meet periodically and separately with, both the Board and management to
discuss their audit findings.

August 22, 2023

Irene Linklater, Executive Director




Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation:

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation (the "Organization"), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2023, and the statements of operations, changes in net
assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Organization as at March 31, 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Organization in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Organization’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Organization or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Organization’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

ACCOUNTING > CONSULTING > TAX

1205 AMBER DRIVE, SUITE 210, THUNDER BAY ON, P7B 6M4

~ i
r(i\‘) PRAXIIY 1.866.623.2141 T:807.623.2141 F:807.622.1282 MNP.ca



As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Organization to cease to continue
as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

AAA/72 ., 4
MNP

Thunder Bay, Ontario Chartered Professional Accountants

August 22, 2023 Licensed Public Accountants

MNP



Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Statement of Financial Position
As at March 31, 2023

2023 2022

Assets

Current
Cash 4,605,274 1,835,151
Accounts receivable (Note 3) 642,995 543,120
Prepaid expenses 36,134 33,902
HST receivable 285,736 147,527
5,570,139 2,559,700
Tangible capital assets (Note 4) 519,581 438,130
6,089,720 2,997,830

Liabilities

Current
Accounts payable and accruals (Note 6) (Note 14) 1,583,042 1,126,312
Deferred revenue (Note 7) 2,735,039 849,481
Deferred contributions related to tangible capital assets (Note 8) 62,214 91,697
Government remittances payable 177,083 80,262

4,557,378 2,147,752

Contingencies (Note 9)

Net Assets
Invested in tangible capital assets 457,367 346,433
Unrestricted 1,123,440 671,043
Restricted (48,465) (167,398)

1,532,342 850,078

6,089,720 2,997,830

Approved on behalf of the Board

Director Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Statement of Operations
For the year ended March 31, 2023

Restricted Unrestricted Invested in 2023 2022
capital assets

Revenue
Community Counselling Centre of Nipissing 129,468 - - 129,468 117,468
Department of Canadian Heritage - - - - 256,788
Department of Justice 1,452,569 - - 1,452,569 649,395
Interest income - 128,143 - 128,143 10,196
Internal management fees - 1,227,105 - 1,227,105 892,135
Legal Aid Ontario 3,506,842 - - 3,506,842 2,533,796
Ministry of the Attorney General 7,824,928 - - 7,824,928 4,390,612
Ministry of Children, Community and Social
Services 2,074,559 - - 2,074,559 2,309,994
Ministry of Solicitor General 18,980 - - 18,980 18,980
Ontario Trillium Foundation - - - - 121,500
Public Safety Canada 26,270 - - 26,270 -
Conn Smythe Foundation 10,000 - - 10,000 -
Other revenue - 3,797 - 3,797 2,580
Springboard 120,000 - - 120,000 120,000
Add: prior year deferred revenue (Note 7) 849,481 - - 849,481 1,183,543
Less: current year deferred
revenue (Note 7) (2,735,039) - - (2,735,039) (849,481)
Repayable to funders (Note 10) (55,839) - - (55,839) (11,238)
Deferred contributions related to tangible
capital assets (Note 8) - - - - (121,180)
Amortization of deferred contributions related
to tangible capital assets (Note 8) 29,483 - - 29,483 29,483
Total revenue 13,251,702 1,359,045 - 14,610,747 11,654,571

Continued on next page

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Statement of Operations
For the year ended March 31, 2023

Restricted Unrestricted Invested in 2023 2022
capital assets
(Continued from previous page) 13,251,702 1,359,045 - 14,610,747 11,654,571
Expenses (Note 14)
Advertising 73,010 2,849 - 75,859 98,006
Annual meetings of members 40,944 - - 40,944 24,531
Automotive 63,131 - - 63,131 30,566
Bank charges 255 3,787 - 4,042 3,745
Board of Directors - meetings 165,419 4,153 - 169,572 98,040
Community partnership 16,053 - - 16,053 262,530
Computers and equipment 776,308 44,611 - 820,919 318,359
Elder honorarium 174,664 1,100 - 175,764 199,695
Insurance and security 11,625 56,785 - 68,410 64,407
Internal management fees 1,240,329 - - 1,240,329 907,028
Law society fees 19,862 - - 19,862 15,679
Lease rentals 5,011 - - 5,011 5,325
Library 1,887 - - 1,887 -
Miscellaneous 9,293 7,978 - 17,271 2,096
Office supplies 458,678 44,024 - 502,702 268,590
Professional fees 198,221 49,477 - 247,698 209,830
Program evaluation 64,801 - - 64,801 33,461
Rent and utilities 752,622 62,259 - 814,882 673,979
Repairs and maintenance 8,340 995 - 9,335 17,008
Salaries and benefits 7,233,491 420,123 - 7,653,614 6,461,672
Telephone 213,102 14,735 - 227,836 184,344
Training 483,174 2,370 - 485,544 480,981
Travel 1,156,071 24,004 - 1,180,075 953,558
Workshops/circle expenses 104,393 - - 104,393 148,102
Total expenses 13,270,684 739,250 - 14,009,934 11,461,532
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses (18,982) 619,795 - 600,813 193,039
before other items
Other items
Amortization of tangible capital assets (199,110) - - (199,110) (187,842)
Tangible capital assets acquisitions included
in expenses 280,561 - - 280,561 248,765
81,451 - - 81,451 60,923
Excess of revenue over expenses 62,469 619,795 - 682,264 253,962

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

3



Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the year ended March 31, 2023

Restricted Unrestricted Invested in 2023 2022
capital assets

Net assets (deficiency), beginning of year (167,398) 671,043 346,433 850,078 596,116
Excess of revenue over expenses 62,469 619,795 - 682,264 253,962
Change in invested in tangible capital assets
(Note 12) (110,934) - 110,934 - -
Interfund Transfers (Note 13) 167,398 (167,398) - - -
Net assets (deficiency), end of year (48,465) 1,123,440 457,367 1,532,342 850,078

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2023

2023 2022
Cash provided by (used for) the following activities
Operating
Excess of revenue over expenses 682,264 253,962
Amortization 199,110 187,842
Amortization of deferred contributions related to tangible capital assets (29,483) (29,483)
851,891 412,321
Changes in working capital accounts
Accounts receivable (99,875) (543,120)
HST receivable (138,209) 32,398
Prepaid expenses (2,232) (3,169)
Accounts payable and accruals 456,730 (338,650)
Government remittances payable 96,821 (66,228)
Deferred revenue 1,885,558 (334,062)
3,050,684 (840,510)
Financing
Cash contributions received for capital assets - 121,180
Investing
Purchase of tangible capital assets (280,561) (248,766)
Increase (decrease) in cash resources 2,770,123 (968,096)
Cash resources, beginning of year 1,835,151 2,803,247
Cash resources, end of year 4,605,274 1,835,151

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2023

Incorporation and nature of the organization

Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation (the “Organization”) is registered under the Income Tax Act (the "Act") as a
charitable organization and is authorized to issue charitable receipts. In order to maintain its status as a registered
charitable organization under the Act, the Organization must meet certain requirements within the Act. In the opinion of
management, these requirements have been met.

The Organization was formed to plan, develop, deliver, coordinate and administer the provision of legal education and
restorative justice, for the people of the Nishnawbe-Aski Nation in a manner sensitive to and respectful of their unique
cultural heritage.

Significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations as issued by the Accounting Standards Board in Canada using the following significant accounting policies:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash held in chartered banks and petty cash.
Tangible capital assets

Purchased tangible capital assets are recorded at cost. Contributed tangible capital assets are recorded at fair value at the
date of contribution if fair value can be reasonably determined.

Amortization is provided using the straight-line method at rates intended to amortize the cost of assets over their estimated
useful lives.

Years
Automotive 7 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Computer software 1 year
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years
System database software 5 years

Long-lived assets

Long-lived assets consist of tangible capital assets. Long-lived assets held for use are measured and amortized as
described in the applicable accounting policies.

The Organization performs impairment testing on long-lived assets held for use whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset, or group of assets, may not be recoverable. The carrying
amount of a group of long-lived assets is not recoverable if the carrying amount exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future
cash flows from their use and disposal. If the carrying amount is not recoverable, impairment is then measured as the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its fair value. Fair value is measured using prices for similar items.
Any impairment is included in excess of revenue over expenses for the year.

Leases

A lease that transfers substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership is classified as a capital lease. At the inception
of a capital lease, an asset and a payment obligation are recorded at an amount equal to the lesser of the present value of
the minimum lease payments and the property’s fair market value. Assets under capital leases are amortized on a
straight-line basis, over their estimated useful lives. All other leases are accounted for as operating leases and rental
payments are expensed as incurred.

An arrangement contains a lease where the arrangement conveys a right to use the underlying tangible asset, and whereby
its fulfillment is dependent on the use of the specific tangible asset. After the inception of the arrangement, a reassessment
of whether the arrangement contains a lease is made only in the event that:

. there is a change in contractual terms;

. a renewal option is exercised or an extension is agreed upon by the parties to the arrangement;

. there is a change in the determination of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of the
specific tangible asset; or

. there is a substantial physical change to the specified tangible asset.




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2023

Significant accounting policies (Continued from previous page)

Revenue recognition

The Organization uses the deferral method of accounting for contributions and reports on a fund accounting basis.
Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the Restricted Fund in the year in which the related expenses are
incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the Unrestricted Fund when received or receivable if the
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Restricted investment income is recognized in the Restricted Fund depending on the nature of the restrictions. Unrestricted
investment income is recognized as revenue in the Unrestricted Fund when earned.

Fund accounting
The Organization reports using fund accounting, and maintains three funds.

The Unrestricted Fund reports the Organization’s revenue and expenses related to program delivery and administrative
activities.

The Restricted Fund reports assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses related to program delivery that are funded with
restricted contributions.

Invested in tangible capital assets reports the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses related to tangible capital assets.
Allocation of expenses

The Organization engages in various programs. The costs of each program include the costs of personnel, insurance, rent,
utilities and other expenses that are directly related to providing the program. The Organization also incurs a number of
general support expenses that are common to the administration of the Organization and each of its programs.

It is the Organization's policy to allocate certain administrative costs to the various programs. Such allocations are recorded
as Internal Administration revenue on the statement of operations. The total program administration fees revenue recorded
for the year is $1,227,105 (2022 - $892,135).

The Organization allocates certain of its general support expenses by identifying the appropriate basis of allocating each
component expense, and applies that basis consistently each year. General support expenses are allocated on the
following bases:

Personnel, insurance, rent and utilities Budgeted amounts allowed under funding

Contributed materials

Contributions of materials are recognized both as contributions and expenses in the statements of operations and changes
in net assets when a fair value can be reasonably estimated and when the materials are used in the normal course of the
Organization's operations and would otherwise have been purchased.




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2023

Significant accounting policies (Continued from previous page)

Measurement uncertainty (use of estimates)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the reporting period.

Accounts receivable are stated after evaluation as to their collectability and an appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts
is provided where considered necessary.

Amortization is based on the estimated useful lives of tangible capital assets.
Accounts payable and accruals are estimated based on historical charges for unbilled goods and services at year-end.

Deferred revenue is estimated based on management's assessment of the unspent amount of funding received as at
year-end.

These estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary they are reported in
excess of revenue over expenses in the periods in which they become known.

Financial instruments

The Organization recognizes financial instruments when the Organization becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument.

Arm's length financial instruments

Financial instruments originated/acquired or issued/assumed in an arm’s length transaction (“arm’s length financial
instruments”) are initially recorded at their fair value.

At initial recognition, the Organization may irrevocably elect to subsequently measure any arm’s length financial instrument
at fair value. The Organization has not made such an election during the year. Fair value is determined by reference to
recent arm’s length transactions.

The Organization subsequently measures investments in equity instruments quoted in an active market and all derivative
instruments, except those designated in a qualifying hedging relationship or that are linked to, and must be settled by
delivery of, unquoted equity instruments of another entity, at fair value. Fair value is determined by published price
quotations. Investments in equity instruments not quoted in an active market and derivatives that are linked to, and must be
settled by delivery of, unquoted equity instruments of another entity, are subsequently measured at cost less impairment.
With the exception of financial liabilities indexed to a measure of the Organization’s performance or value of its equity and
those instruments designated at fair value, all other financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized
cost.

Transaction costs and financing fees directly attributable to the origination, acquisition, issuance or assumption of financial
instruments subsequently measured at fair value are immediately recognized in excess of revenue over expenses.
Conversely, transaction costs and financing fees are added to the carrying amount for those financial instruments
subsequently measured at cost or amortized cost.




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2023

Significant accounting policies (Continued from previous page)
Related party financial instruments

The Organization initially measures the following financial instruments originated/acquired or issued/assumed in a related
party transaction (“related party financial instruments”) at fair value:

. Investments in equity instruments quoted in an active market.

° Debt instruments quoted in an active market.

o Debt instruments when the inputs significant to the determination of its fair value are observable
(directly or indirectly).

. Derivative contracts.

All other related party financial instruments are measured at cost on initial recognition. When the financial instrument has
repayment terms, cost is determined using the undiscounted cash flows, excluding interest, dividend, variable and
contingent payments, less any impairment losses previously recognized by the transferor. When the financial instrument
does not have repayment terms, but the consideration transferred has repayment terms, cost is determined based on the
repayment terms of the consideration transferred. When the financial instrument and the consideration transferred both do
not have repayment terms, the cost is equal to the carrying or exchange amount of the consideration transferred or
received.

At initial recognition, the Organization may elect to subsequently measure related party debt instruments that are quoted in
active market, or that have observable inputs significant to the determination of fair value, at fair value.

The Organization subsequently measures investments in equity instruments quoted in an active market and all derivative
instruments, except those designated in a qualifying hedging relationship or that are linked to, and must be settled by
delivery of, unquoted equity instruments of another entity, at fair value. Fair value is determined by published price
quotations. Financial instruments that were initially measured at cost and derivatives that are linked to, and must be settled
by, delivery of unquoted equity instruments of another entity, are subsequently measured using the cost method less any
reduction for impairment.

Transaction costs and financing fees directly attributable to the origination, acquisition, issuance or assumption of related
party financial instruments are immediately recognized in excess of revenue over expenses.

Financial asset impairment

The Organization assesses impairment of all its financial assets measured at cost or amortized cost. The Organization
groups assets for impairment testing when there are numerous assets affected by the same factors. Management considers
whether the issuer is having significant financial difficulty; in determining whether objective evidence of impairment exists.
When there is an indication of impairment, the Organization determines whether it has resulted in a significant adverse
change in the expected timing or amount of future cash flows during the year.

With the exception of related party debt instruments and related party equity instruments initially measured at cost, the
Organization reduces the carrying amount of any impaired financial assets to the highest of: the present value of cash flows
expected to be generated by holding the assets; the amount that could be realized by selling the assets at the statement of
financial position date; and the amount expected to be realized by exercising any rights to collateral held against those
assets.

For related party debt instruments initially measured at cost, the Organization reduces the carrying amount of the asset

(or group of assets), to the highest of: the undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by holding the asset, or group
of similar assets, excluding the interest and dividend payments of the instrument; the present value of cash flows expected
to be generated by holding the assets; the amount that could be realized by selling the assets at the statement of financial
position date; and the amount expected to be realized by exercising any rights to collateral held against those assets.

For related party equity instruments initially measured at cost, the Organization reduces the carrying amount of the asset
(or group of assets), to the amount that could be realized by selling the asset(s) at the statement of financial position date.

Any impairment, which is not considered temporary, is included in current year excess of revenue over expenses.

The Organization reverses impairment losses on financial assets when there is a decrease in impairment and the decrease
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The amount of the reversal is
recognized in excess of revenue over expenses in the year the reversal occurs.




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2023

Accounts receivable

2023 2022
Department of Canadian Heritage - 9,630
Department of Justice 133,261 59,890
Ministry of the Attorney General 69,000 461,500
Ontario Trillium Foundation - 12,100
Public Safety Canada 26,270 -
Community Counselling Centre of Nipissing 64,734 -
Legal Aid Ontario 349,730 -
642,995 543,120
Tangible capital assets
2023 2022
Accumulated Net book Net book
Cost amortization value value
Automotive 206,910 87,688 119,222 148,780
Computer equipment 546,951 429,194 117,757 101,746
Computer software 67,875 67,875 - -
Furniture and fixtures 602,260 424,660 177,600 90,413
Leasehold improvements 142,140 51,312 90,828 77,549
System database software 47,340 33,166 14,174 19,642
1,613,476 1,093,895 519,581 438,130

Computer equipment includes computer hardware with a carrying value of $27,473, furniture and fixtures includes furniture
with a carrying value of $52,068, and leasehold improvements includes improvements with a carrying value of $35,262 . No
amortization of these assets has been recorded during the current year because they were not in use at year-end.

Bank indebtedness

At March 31, 2023, the Organization had lines of credit available totaling $100,000 (2022 - $100,000), bearing interest at
prime plus 2% (8.70% at year-end; 2022 - 4.70%). At March 31, 2023, the entire amount remained unused. A general
security agreement has been collateralized in connection with this line of credit.

Accounts payable and accruals

2023 2022

Trade payables and accruals 514,526 579,481
Amounts repayable to funders (Note 10) 422,279 368,767
Salaries and benefits payable 646,237 178,064
1,583,042 1,126,312
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2023

10.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue consists of unspent contributions externally restricted for delivery of various programs. Recognition of
these amounts as revenue is deferred to periods when the specified expenditures are made. Changes in the deferred
revenue are as follows:

2023 2022
Balance, beginning of year 849,481 1,183,543
Amount received during the year 7,199,032 2,938,856
Less: amount recognized as revenue during the year (5,313,474) (3,272,918)
Balance, end of year 2,735,039 849,481

Deferred contributions related to tangible capital assets

Deferred contributions related to tangible capital assets represent the unamortized amounts of contributions (grants)
received for the purchase of tangible capital assets. The change in the deferred contributions related to tangible capital
assets is as follows:

2023 2022
Balance, beginning of year 91,697 -
Add: contributions received during the year
- Ministry of Children, Community and Social Services - 39,354
- Ontario Trillium Foundation - 81,826
- 121,180
Less: amount amortized to revenue during the year
- Ministry of Children, Community and Social Services (13,118) (13,118)
- Ontario Trillium Foundation (16,365) (16,365)
(29,483) (29,483)
Balance, end of year 62,214 91,697

Contingencies

The Organization is contingently liable to its funding agencies for any expenditures that it may have made in contravention
of the contracts/agreements with these agencies. The actual amount of the contingent liability, if any, is currently not
determinable.

The Organization has outstanding lawsuits, the outcomes of which are not readily determinable. As a result, no provision

has been made in the financial statements for losses, if any, which may arise as a result of the resolution of these claims. If
any of the actions are successful, they will be recognized in the period in which the settlement occurs.

Repayable to funders

2023 2022
Balance, beginning of year 368,766 357,528
Less: amount repaid during the year (2,326) -
Less: amount funders approved to be retained (274,179) -
Add: amount repayable from current year 330,018 11,238
Balance, end of year 422,279 368,766
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2023

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Commitments

The Organization has entered into a lease for a postage machine with DLL Financial Solutions Partner that expires on
August 1, 2025 with quarterly costs of $998.

The Organization has entered into a lease for a multifunction printer with Xerox that expires on April 17, 2028 with quarterly
costs of $541.

The Organization has entered into a lease for two multifunction printers with Wells Fargo that expires on May 15, 2024 with
monthly costs of $298.

The Organization has entered into a lease for office equipment with DLL Financial Solutions Partner that expires on
November 20, 2023 with quarterly costs of $3,181.

The Organization has also committed to various leases for remote office locations with ending dates ranging from June 30,
2023 to January 31, 2028.

The amounts payable over the next five fiscal years related to the above leases are as follows:

2024 460,706
2025 325,654
2026 311,925
2027 296,534
2028 114,446

1,509,265

Change in invested in tangible capital assets

The change in invested in tangible capital assets is calculated as follows:

2023 2022

Purchase of tangible capital assets 280,561 248,766
Amortization expense (199,110) (187,842)
Deferred contributed tangible capital assets - (121,180)
Amortization of contributed tangible capital assets 29,483 29,483
110,934 (30,773)

Interfund transfer

During the year, a transfer of $167,398 from the unrestricted fund to the restricted fund to clear the historical deficit
accumulated as of March 31, 2022 was approved.

Related party transactions

Included in expenses for the current year is $123,656 (2022 - $221,666) paid to businesses owned by an immediagte family
member of senior management. The expenses are measured at the exchange amount, which is the amount of
consideration paid by the Organization to the business owned by an immediate familty member of senior management.

Economic dependence

The Organization's primary source of revenue is grants from various government agencies. The grant funding can be
cancelled if the Organization does not observe certain established guidelines. The Organization's ability to continue viable
operations is dependent upon maintaining its right to follow the criteria within funding guidelines. As at the date of these
financial statements, the Organization believes that it is in compliance with these guidelines.
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For the year ended March 31, 2023

16.

Financial instruments

The Organization, as part of its operations, carries a number of financial instruments. It is management's opinion that the
Organization is not exposed to significant interest, currency, credit, liquidity or other price risks arising from these financial
instruments except as otherwise disclosed.

13



	NAN Legal Annual Report 2023_JW_English
	NAN Legal Annual Report 2023_JW_Cree
	NAN Legal Annual Report 2023_JW_Ojicree
	NAN Legal Annual Report 2023_Finacials
	NAN Legal tabs



